
 
 

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON ELECTRONIC MEETING 
THURSDAY, MARCH 16TH, 2023 - 5:00 P.M. 

Council meetings are recorded and will be available on the Township 

website under Quick Links – Council Agendas and Minutes within 5 

business days of the Council meeting. 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85499155569?pwd=ZllnSHdSTXRiWWZKeEs1K1d3ZWc0UT0

9 
 

Meeting ID: 854 9915 5569 
Passcode: 505732 
One tap mobile 

+17789072071,,85499155569#,,,,*505732# Canada 
+17806660144,,85499155569#,,,,*505732# Canada 

 

Dial by your location 
+1 778 907 2071 Canada 
+1 780 666 0144 Canada 
+1 204 272 7920 Canada 
+1 438 809 7799 Canada 
+1 587 328 1099 Canada 
+1 647 374 4685 Canada 
+1 647 558 0588 Canada 

Meeting ID: 854 9915 5569 
Passcode: 505732 

 

 

AGENDA  
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Land Acknowledgement Statement 
 
 We will begin the meeting by sharing the Land Acknowledgement Statement: 

We would like to begin by acknowledging that Melancthon Township recognizes 

the ancestral lands and treaty territories of the Tionontati (Petun/Wyandot(te)), 

Haudenosaunee (Six Nations), and Anishinaabe Peoples.  The Township of 

Melancthon resides within the lands named under the Haldimand Deed of 1784 

and the Lake Simcoe-Nottawasaga Treaty (Treaty 18). 

These territories upon which we live and learn, are steeped in rich Indigenous 

history and traditions.  It is with this statement that we declare to honour and 

respect the past and present connection of Indigenous peoples with this land, its 

waterways and resources. 

3. Announcements 
 
4. Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85499155569?pwd=ZllnSHdSTXRiWWZKeEs1K1d3ZWc0UT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85499155569?pwd=ZllnSHdSTXRiWWZKeEs1K1d3ZWc0UT09


5. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof 
       
6. Approval of Draft Minutes – March 2, 2023 

 
7. Business Arising from Minutes 

  
8. Point of Privilege or Personal Privilege 

 
9. Public Question Period (Please visit our website under Agendas and Minutes 

for information on Public Question Period) 

 
10. Public Works 

1. Other 

 
11. Planning 

1. Applications to Permit 
2. Other 

 
12. Climate Change Initiatives 
  
13. Police Services Board 
 
14. County Council Update 
 
15. Correspondence 
 
 Board, Committee & Working Group Minutes 
 1. Roads Sub-Committee – February 1, 2023 
 2. Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority Board – February 2023 
 3. Upper Grand Watershed Committee - August 25th, 2022 
 4. Upper Grand Watershed Committee – February 23, 2023 
 5. Grand River Conservation Authority – February 24, 2023 
  
 Items for Information Purposes 

1. Request for Comments on Niagara Escarpment Plan Amendment  
2. Township of Amaranth Motion to Support a County Wide 

Telecommunications System 
3.  Municipality of Trent Lakes Motion to Request the Minister of Municipal 

Affairs and Housing to Make Changes to the Municipal Oath of Office 
4.  Township of East Garafraxa Motion Regarding Lake Erie Source Protection 

Committee Membership Nomination for 2022-2026 Term 
5.  Township of East Garafraxa Motion to Support a County Wide 

Telecommunications System 
6. Township of Southgate Notice of Virtual Public Information Centre No. 2 

Wastewater Treatment Capacity 
7. Letter from Harvey Lyon to Ilona Feldmann, Source Protection Program 

Assistant regarding Source Water Protection report dated December 20, 
2022 

  
 Items for Council Action 
 1. Shelburne Public Library 2023 Budget 

2. Letters from Lenora Banfield, Chair of the Upper Grand Watershed 
Committee  

3. North Dufferin Community Centre Board of Management 2023 Budget 
4. Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Department 2023 Budget 
5. Shelburne & District Fire Department 2023 Operating Budget 

  
 



16. General Business 
1. Notice of Intent to Pass By-law 

1. By-Law to Prescribe a Tariff of Fees for Planning Matters 
2. By-Law to Adopt the Estimates of all Sums Required During the 

Year and to Strike the Rates of Taxation and to Further Provide for 
Penalty and Interest in Default of Payment Thereof for the Year 
2023 

2. New/Other Business/Additions 
1. Roseann Knechtel, Deputy Clerk Township of Mulmur Report 

Regarding Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Hall: Emergency Shelter 
     
17. Delegations  
 1. 5:20 p.m. – Public Meeting to Inform the Public of a Proposed Official Plan 

and Zoning By-law Amendment – Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd.  
2. 5:40 p.m. – Carl Cosack, NDACT – To update Council on the 

NDACT/Strada Engagement  
 

18. Closed Session 
 1. Items for Discussion:  Section 239(2)(h) – Information explicitly supplied 

in confidence to the municipality – 2023 Market Compensation Review 
Workplan and Costing from ML Consulting Services & Section 239(2)(k) 
Plans and instructions for negotiations – Proposed Flato Development 
(Deputy Mayor McLean) 

 2. Approval of Draft Minutes – March 2, 2023 
 3. Business Arising from Minutes 
 4. Rise With or Without Report from Closed Session  
 
19. Third Reading of By-laws  
 
20. Notice of Motion 
 
21. Confirmation By-law 
 
22. Adjournment and Date of Next Meeting –Thursday, April 6th, 2023 at 5:00 

p.m. 
 
23. On Sites 
 
24. Correspondence on File at the Clerk’s Office 



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023PLAN #11.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023BD COMM #1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text









 

 
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON, L0M 1T0 ⚫ 705-424-1479 ⚫ admin@nvca.on.ca 

www.nvca.on.ca 

 

NVCA February 2023 Board Meeting Highlights 

Next Meeting: March 24, 2023, held virtually 

For the full meeting agenda including documents and reports, visit NVCA’s website. 

Board Orientation 

NVCA’s Senior Management Team conducted an 

orientation presentation to the Board of 
Directors.  

Topics covered in the presentation include an 

overview of the Nottawasaga Watershed, 
history of the NVCA, responsibilities of each 
NVCA department, board governance and 

issues facing the Nottawasaga Watershed. 

Presentation on 2023 Draft Budget 

Sheryl Flannagan, Director, Corporate Services, 
gave a presentation on NVCA’s 2023 Draft 
Budget.  

In November 2022, NVCA’s previous board 
approved the preliminary budget guidelines to 
increase municipal levy by $150,000. Based on 

this approval, staff prepared a draft budget that 
came in considerably below the targeted 
number. 

The NVCA Board of Directors has approved the 
draft budget and program overview for 
circulation to municipalities for a 90-day review 

period. The final budget vote will be on March 
24, 2023.  

NVCA’s Source Water Risk 

Management Officials 

Nine municipalities in the Nottawasaga 
Watershed have transferred responsibilities of 
the enforcement of Part IV policies in the South 

Georgian Bay Lake Simcoe Source Protection 
Plan to NVCA. 

NVCA has appointed Sarah Thompson 

appointed as a Risk Management Official and 
Risk Management Inspector and Taryn 

Arsenault appointed as an Alternate Risk 
Management Official and Inspector. 

Administrative Memorandum of 

Understanding 

Through changes to the Conservation 
Authorities Act, NVCA will be negotiating and 
executing Memorandums of Understanding and 

Service Level Agreements with partner 
municipalities to deliver services deemed non-
mandatory. These services fall into three 

categories 

• Category 1 – services prescribed as 
mandatory by the province  

• Category 2 – services delivered on behalf of 
municipalities  

• Category 3 – services that further the 

conservation, restoration, development and 
management of natural resources 

The NVCA Board of Directors have approved the 

CAO and staff to use the Administrative MOU to 
complete apportioned cost agreement 
negotiations between municipal partners and 

NVCA. 

The apportioned cost agreement is based on 
the Current Value Assessment provided the 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry. 

Funding from Federal government’s 

Freshwater Action Plan 

NVCA’s Chair and Vice Chair will submit a 

resolution with an accompanying letter to the 
federal government to renew their commitment 
to invest $1 billion to restore the Great Lakes. 

In 2017, the federal government announced 
$44.84 million over five years in funding to 
enhance, restore and protect the Great Lakes 

file://///nvca-data01/data/Communications/Board%20of%20Directors/Agendas,%20Minutes,%20Highlights/2021/nvca.on.ca/about/boardofdirectors
https://www.nvca.on.ca/Shared%20Documents/NVCA%202023%20draft%20budget.pdf
https://www.nvca.on.ca/Shared%20Documents/NVCA%202023%20draft%20budget.pdf
kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023BD COMM #2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



 

 
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON, L0M 1T0 ⚫ 705-424-1479 ⚫ admin@nvca.on.ca 

www.nvca.on.ca 

through the Fresh Water Action Plan. In 2021, 
the government renewed their commitment 

with a promise of $1 billion over ten years to 
restore major bodies of water across the 
country. However, only 19.6 million was 

budgeted for the Freshwater Action Plan in 
2022. 

The Nottawasaga Watershed has a strong 

connection to the Great Lakes as all streams 
and rivers in the watershed flow into Georgian 
Bay (Lake Huron).  

As the watershed faces challenges such as 
climate change, invasive species, exposure to 
toxins and beach contamination, NVCA will join 

organizations across Canada to advocate that 
the federal government invest $1 billion in a 
strengthened Freshwater Action Plan in 2023. 

Permits Approvals under the CA Act 

NVCA’s permit application service timelines are 

governed by the Conservation Authority Liaison 
Committee (CALC), which requires NVCA to 
complete a policy review within 21 days, and 

complete a technical review within 30 days for 
minor applications and 90 days for major 
applications. 

NVCA Regulations staff provided a summary of 
the permits issued during the period June 13, 
2022 to December 31, 2022. A total of 432 

permits and clearances were approved by staff 
for this time period, with 96% of the permits 
were processed within the provincial timelines. 

Customer Satisfaction Report 

In 2013, NVCA adopted a Customer Service 

Charter and Strategy that sets out the 
authority’s commitment to providing excellence 
in customer service. Continuous improvement is 

a key element of the charter.  

Please visit NVCA’s website to view the 2021 
Customer Service Satisfaction Report. 

Regulations 

In 2022, 42 individuals and organizations 
completed a client survey on the NVCA permit 

application process. The survey is sent to all 
those receiving NVCA permits. 

Between 60% and 83% of those completing the 

client survey rated their overall experience with 

NVCA’s permit application process as good or 
excellent. In general, the responses that were 

ranked as good or excellent in 2022 was 68%, 
lower than the 90% rating received in 2021. 

The Planning Services team saw significant staff 

turnover in 2022, which caused customer 
satisfaction to decrease from previous years.  

Recognizing that our customer service needed 

to be enhanced, NVCA took measures to better 
service watershed residents. These include: 

• Prioritized files to increase efficiency. 

• Assigning planning and regulation files 
according to the strength of staff.  

• Finding the best way to automate data 

management 

• Contracting a consulting firm to examine 
current fees and opportunities to expand the 

level of service meet the needs and 
expectations of our partners and watershed 
residents. 

Lands 

Two (2) respondents provided feedback 

regarding parking for two of NVCA’s 
conservation areas.  

NVCA’s conservation areas received 5-star 

ratings on Google’s business listings.  

Education 

In 2021, 16 teachers submitted feedback 

surveys on NVCA’s virtual environmental 
education programs.  

Of those responding, 100% of the respondents 

ranked the Grade 4 program as excellent or 
good for the following criteria 

• opportunities to interact with the natural 

world 

• first-hand investigation of the environment, 
appreciation of wild spaces 

• real-world and/or hands-on curriculum 
connections and student collaboration.  

Stewardship 

NVCA’s stewardship services include Forestry, 
the Healthy Waters grant program, and other 
projects to protect and enhance our watershed. 

Comments received from funders and 

https://www.nvca.on.ca/Shared%20Documents/Policies%20and%20Procedures%20for%20Conservation%20Authority%20Plan%20Review%20and%20Permitting%20Activities.pdf
https://www.nvca.on.ca/Shared%20Documents/Policies%20and%20Procedures%20for%20Conservation%20Authority%20Plan%20Review%20and%20Permitting%20Activities.pdf
file://///nvca-data01/Shared%20Documents/NVCA%20Customer%20Satisfaction%20Report%202021.pdf
file://///nvca-data01/Shared%20Documents/NVCA%20Customer%20Satisfaction%20Report%202021.pdf


 

 
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON, L0M 1T0 ⚫ 705-424-1479 ⚫ admin@nvca.on.ca 

www.nvca.on.ca 

landowners generally describe the expertise 
and dedication of NVCA’s stewardship staff. 

Weddings 

In 2022, the Tiffin Centre for Conservation was 
host to 19 wedding celebrations. Four (4) of 

these couples responded to a wedding feedback 
survey. Of those responding, 100% rated 
NVCA’s customer service as excellent, and 

100% said they would recommend Tiffin Centre 
as a wedding venue to others. 

Upcoming Events 

 
Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

Hosted by the Rotary Club of Barrie, the Spring 
Tonic Maple Syrup Festival  is a tradition 
spanning more than three decades.  

 
Visitors will take a trip back in time to explore 
how Indigenous people and Pioneers made 

maple syrup. After that, they will return to 
current times and see how maple syrup is made 
today! End the tour with pancake and sausage 

breakfast with fresh maple syrup and join in 
many other activities. 
Date: April 1 and 2, 2023.  

Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0 
 

Tiffin Nature Program 
Geared towards pre-K and children in 
kindergarten, the Tiffin nature program 

will help children gain knowledge, 
understanding and appreciation of the natural 
world and our amazing planet. 

Date: 6-week sessions from September 20, 
2022 to June 13, 2023.  
Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 

8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0 
 

PA/PD Day Camp 
Offered on PA/PD Days only, kids will enjoy lots 
of physical activity, and be mentally stimulated 

as they explore ever changing scenery and 
landscapes. They will be able to move away 
from excess screen time, and learn how to 

integrate nature into their everyday lives.  
Dates: October 24, 2022, November 18, 2022, 

January 27, 2023, April 28, 2023, June 2, 2023 

Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0 

 
Homeschool Programs 

Tiffin's Homeschool Program is designed for 
homeschool families who want to spend 
structured time outside to develop a sense of 

wonder, appreciation and respect for the 
natural world.  
Date: One Friday a month from October 15, 

2022 to June 23, 2023 
Location: Various locations throughout the 
Nottawasaga Watershed 

 



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023BD COMM #3

kchessell
Typewritten Text







kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023BD COMM #4

kchessell
Typewritten Text









To GRCA/GRCF Boards and Grand River watershed municipalities - Please share as appropriate. 

Action Items 
The Board approved the resolutions in the following reports as presented in the agenda: 

• GM-02-23-20 - GRCA Fee Policy Schedule 2 - Conservation Areas – Amended 
• GM-02-23-10 - Grand River Notification Agreement Renewal 
• GM-02-22-13 - Afforestation Services for Spring 2023 
• GM-02-23-14 - 2023 Replacement Tractors Purchase 
• GM-02-23-15 - 2023 Replacement Vehicle Purchase 
• GM-02-23-12 - 2023 Road Site Preparation and Surface Treatment 
• GM-02-23-16 - Financial Summary 
• GM-02-23-19 - Report and Recommendations of the Audit Committee 
• Approval of Financial Statements and Report of the Auditor 
• GM-02-23-17 - Budget 2023 and Presentation of Budget Estimates for the Current Year 
• Appointment of Auditors for the year ending December 31, 2023 
• Provision for Borrowing (Pending Receipt of Municipal Levies) 

Information Items 
The Board received the following reports as information: 

• Minutes of the GRCA Board Composition Review Committee - February 10, 2023 
• GM-02-23-18 - Current Watershed Conditions 
• GM-02-23-09 - Cash and Investment Status 
• GM-02-23-11 - Weighted Voting - 2023 Budget and General Levy 

Correspondence  
The Board received the following correspondence: 

• Halton Region - 2023 Budget Direction 
• Bev McIntyre - Guelph Lake CA seasonal camping fees 
• GRCA Response - Guelph Lake CA seasonal camping fees 

Source Protection Authority 
The General Membership of the GRCA also acts as the Source Protection Authority Board. No meeting was 
held this month. 

Committee Appointments 
The Board appointed members and officers to the following committees: 

• Audit Committee 
• Conservation Ontario Council Representatives 

For full information, please refer to the February 24 Agenda Package. Complete agenda packages and minutes of past 
meetings can be viewed on our online calendar. The minutes of this meeting will be posted on our online calendar 
following the next meeting of the General Membership scheduled on March 24, 2023. 
You are receiving this email as a GRCA board member, GRCF board member, or a Grand River watershed member 
municipality. If you do not wish to receive this monthly summary, please respond to this email with the word ‘unsubscribe’. 

 
Grand River Conservation Authority 
Summary of the General Membership Annual General Meeting – February 24, 2023 

https://calendar.grandriver.ca/directors/Detail/2023-02-24-GRCA-General-Membership-Meeting-Annual-General-Mee
https://calendar.grandriver.ca/directors/Index
kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023BD COMM #5

kchessell
Typewritten Text



Niagara Escarpment Commission 

232 Guelph St.  

Georgetown, ON  L7G 4B1 

Tel:  905-877-5191 

www.escarpment.org

Commission de l’escarpement du Niagara 

232, rue Guelph 

Georgetown ON  L7G 4B1 

No de tel. 905-877-5191 

www.escarpment.org

February 24, 2023 

REQUEST FOR COMMENTS 

Under the NIAGARA ESCARPMENT PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 

TO: All Escarpment municipalities 
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs 
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry  
Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks  
Ministry of Heritage, Sport, Tourism and Culture Industries 
Conservation Authorities  

Ontario Craft Wineries  
Ontario Federation of Agriculture 
Grape Growers of Ontario 
Christian Farmers Federation of Ontario 
Beef Farmers of Ontario 
Ontario Fruit and Vegetable Growers’ Association 
Dairy Farmers of Ontario 
Chicken Farmers of Ontario 
Bruce Trail Conservancy  
Interested Parties  

FROM: Sandy Dobbyn 

Niagara Escarpment Commission 

RE: NIAGARA ESCARPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT PC 225 22 – 

Agricultural Policies amendment 

The Niagara Escarpment Commission, at its meeting of November 16, 2022, decided to 

initiate and circulate for comments, the proposed amendment noted above. Notice is 

also to be provided to the public through the newspaper(s) listed below and a posting 

on the Province’s Environmental Registry (https://www.escarpment.org/LandPlanning/
NEP/PlanAmendments/ActivePlanAmendments).

1/2

https://www.escarpment.org/LandPlanning/NEP/PlanAmendments/ActivePlanAmendments
kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023INFO #1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



2 

Newspapers:  
St. Catharines Standard 
Niagara This Week 
Hamilton Spectator 
Georgetown Independent Free Press 
Milton Champion 
Burlington Post 
Caledon Enterprise 
Orangeville Banner 
Collingwood Enterprise-Bulletin 
Owen Sound Sun Times 
Wiarton Echo 

Pursuant to Sections 7 and 10 (1) of the Niagara Escarpment Planning and 

Development Act, the Commission invites your comments on this proposed Niagara 

Escarpment Plan Amendment. The Initial Staff Report and the proposed Amendment 

document are enclosed for your review.  

Please submit comments to the Niagara Escarpment Commission by April 24, 2023. 

Should comments not be received by this date, the Commission will assume that you 

have no objection or comments on the proposed amendment.  

If you wish to receive further notice of the status of this application, you must submit a 

written request to the Commission.  

Please submit comments to Rameez Sadafal, Policy Program Intern at 

Rameez.Sadafal@ontario.ca. 

Yours truly, 

Sandy Dobbyn 

A/Senior Strategic Advisor 

Attachment



1  

 
Niagara Escarpment Commission 

 
232 Guelph St. 
Georgetown, ON L7G 4B1 
Tel: 905-877-5191 
www.escarpment.org 

 
 
 
 
 

November 16, 2022 

 
 

Commission de l’escarpement du Niagara 
 

232, rue Guelph 
Georgetown ON L7G 4B1 
No de tel. 905-877-5191 
www.escarpment.org 

 

Initial Staff Report 
 

RE: Proposed Niagara Escarpment Plan Amendment PC 225 22 
 

On-farm Diversified Uses and Agricultural-related Uses in Escarpment 
Protection Area, and other agricultural-related policy housekeeping 
matters 

 

Source: Niagara Escarpment Commission (NEC) 
 

Area: The entire Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP) Area 
 

Proposal summary: 
 

To amend the Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP) to allow the opportunity for the 
development of on-farm diversified uses and agricultural-related uses outside of prime 
agricultural areas by amending the Escarpment Protection Area Permitted Uses to be 
consistent with the Escarpment Rural Area policy, and; to amend the NEP Part 2.7 
policies respecting Development Affecting Natural Heritage to recognize that the 
development of certain agricultural uses may be compatible in Key Natural Heritage 
Features, under certain conditions. Additionally, to undertake a housekeeping-related 
amendment to Part 1 Escarpment Natural Area Permitted Uses to better align Ontario 
Regulation 828/90 exemption respecting a specific agricultural use with the Permitted 
Uses of the NEP. 

 
Purpose: 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide the justification for the consideration of 
amendments to the NEP that would further refine and strengthen the framework for 
agriculture in the NEP Area while ensuring that the Purpose and Objectives of the Plan 
are upheld. To initiate an amendment, the NEC under Section 6.1(2.1) of the Niagara 
Escarpment Planning and Development Act (NEPDA) must be satisfied that the 
amendment is justified and worthy of consideration; however, even if the proposed 
amendment is justified at this stage, this is not an endorsement of the eventual approval 
of the amendment in whole or in part. 

http://www.escarpment.org/
http://www.escarpment.org/


2  

Staff summary recommendation: 
 

That the Commission instructs staff to prepare the proposed amendment PC 225 22 for 
circulation and notification in accordance with the provisions of Sections 7 and 10 of the 
Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act, and the recommendations of the 
report, based on the direction of the Commission on November 17, 2021. 

 
A. Background / Overview 

 

The 2015 Coordinated Land Use Planning Review resulted in the current 2017 NEP and 
included several changes to agricultural policies to better align with the Provincial Policy 
Statement (PPS, 2020), as well as the other provincial land use plans. On-farm 
diversified uses (OFDUs) and agriculture-related uses were introduced to the NEP as 
Permitted Uses, together with new Part 2 Development Criteria to guide these uses. 

Notwithstanding these enhancements, members of the NEC, as well as select key 
agricultural stakeholders, have continued to express concerns that the agricultural 
policies of the NEP 2017 are inadequate in terms of supporting a viable agricultural 
system for the long term. 

 
The 2017 NEP has now had the benefit of five years of implementation and staff and 
the Commission have been monitoring and documenting the outcomes, challenges, and 
lessons learned through early implementation. Staff presented the Commission with a 
NEP Agricultural Policies Amendment Scoping Discussion Paper at their meeting on 
November 17, 2021. The report was prepared to provide a consolidated summary of the 
agricultural discussions to date (since the Coordinated Land Use Planning Review), and 
to summarize the successes and challenges to implementation of the agricultural 
policies that have been observed since the 2017 NEP has been in operation, to provide 
a foundation for further discussion by the Commission on the need for and scoping of a 
potential NEP amendment related to agriculture. 

 
At their meeting on November 17, 2021, the Commission directed staff: 

 
1) To proceed with initiating a Niagara Escarpment Plan amendment to address the 

following: 
• Part 1.4.3.2 Escarpment Protection Area on-farm diversified uses and 

agriculture-related uses in prime agricultural areas. 
• Agricultural uses within Earth Science Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest. 

 
2) To undertake further analysis of additional agricultural policy topic areas, for 

potential consideration in the scoping of a proposed Plan amendment: 



3  

• Part 2.8 winery policies 
• Agricultural uses in key natural heritage features 
• Supporting the Agricultural System in the NEP Area 

 
Staff is aware that the proposals presented herein do not reflect or address the full 
extent of the agricultural policy amendments that key agricultural stakeholders are 
seeking. While the proposals presented do address significant targeted concerns (i.e., 
Part 1.4.3.2 policy respecting OFDUs and ARUs in prime agricultural areas), additional 
areas of interest remain with agricultural stakeholders respecting viable agriculture and agri- 
tourism in the NEP Area. 

 
Staff provides that these additional topic areas will continue to be discussed and given 
appropriate consideration, including with ministry partners and a broader range of 
agriculture stakeholders. Staff considers the current amendment proposals as ‘Phase 1’ and 
advancing the current amendment proposal would not preclude subsequent amendments 
from being considered. 

 
Additionally, staff notes some of the changes being proposed by stakeholders (i.e., events), 
may involve regulatory and or legislative changes, which are beyond the scope of the 
amendment process and or may be considered urban uses that would be required by the 
Act to be addressed through the next Plan Review. 

 
B. Existing planning framework 

1. Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act (NEPDA) 
 

Sections 6.1(2.2) of the NEPDA identifies that no person or public body shall make an 
application or request to amend the NEP if the application or request relates to land that 
is within the land use designation of Escarpment Natural Area, Escarpment Protection 
Area, Mineral Resource Extraction Area or Escarpment Rural Area of the NEP and the 
application or request seeks to, a) re-designate the land to the land use designation of 
Minor Urban Centre, Urban Area or Escarpment Recreation Area of the Niagara 
Escarpment Plan; or b) make any other amendment to permit urban uses unless it is 
during the time of a Plan Review. 

Staff finds that the amendment proposals for policy revisions respecting agricultural uses, 
OFDUs, and ARUs do not trigger the prohibition regarding “urban uses” and “urban 
designations” under the NEPDA. Escarpment Natural Area and Escarpment Protection 
Area designations come with their suite of Permitted Uses and policies, including 
provisions for agricultural uses, as set out in the NEP. Therefore, the proposed 
amendment, including the addition of policies to Part 2 Development Criteria, is 



4  

consistent with the NEPDA respecting urban uses and urban designations, and the NEC 
can consider the planning merits of this application under Section 6.1 of the NEPDA. 

2. Niagara Escarpment Plan 
 

Agricultural Uses are identified as Permitted Uses in all Land Use Designations except 
the Escarpment Natural Area (where only existing agricultural uses, existing agriculture- 
related and existing on-farm diversified uses are permitted). The NEP Part 1.4.3.2 
Escarpment Protection Area Permitted Uses identifies on-farm diversified uses and 
agriculture-related uses as Permitted Uses in the Escarpment Protection Area, in prime 
agricultural areas (emphasis added). A prime agricultural area is defined in the NEP as 
an area where prime agricultural lands predominate. This includes areas of prime 
agricultural lands and associated Canada Land Inventory Class 4 through 7 lands, and 
additional areas where there is a local concentration of farms that exhibit characteristics 
of ongoing agriculture. Prime agricultural areas may be defined by OMAFRA using 
guidelines developed by the province as amended from time to time. 

 
Development Criteria in Part 2.8 Agriculture includes the objective to encourage 
agricultural uses in agricultural areas, especially in prime agricultural areas, to permit 
uses that are compatible with farming, and to encourage accessory uses that directly 
support continued agricultural uses. The policies in Part 2.8 require prime agricultural 
areas to be protected for long-term agricultural use. 

 
New Part 2 Development Criteria were added in the 2017 NEP respecting the 
development of agriculture-related uses and on-farm diversified uses. The criteria work 
to allow the consideration for diversification of an agricultural operation to enable 
greater economic viability of the farm while ensuring that the uses remain compatible 
with the Escarpment environment and surrounding agricultural operations and other 
land uses. 

 
The relevant NEP objectives and Development Criteria respecting agriculture are 
discussed in greater detail in Section D, Analysis & amendment considerations section 
below. 

 
Ontario Regulation 828/90 - Development Permit Regulation 

 
Ontario Regulation 828/90, under the NEPDA, lists the classes of development that are 
exempt from the requirement of obtaining a Development Permit from the NEC, 
provided the criteria can be met. For example, O. Reg 828/90 specifically exempts 
general agricultural development, which is defined as a class of development whereby 
land, buildings, or structures are used for the purpose of forestry, cultivation of trees and 



5  

nursery stock, maple sugar harvesting, field crops, fruit farming, market gardening, 
dairying, animal husbandry, poultry raising, beekeeping, the operation of glass or plastic 
covered greenhouses, and such uses as are customarily and normally related to 
agriculture, but does not include: (a) special agricultural development, or b) the 
construction of an equestrian racetrack or sand ring or any class of development 
whereby land, buildings or structures are used for the purpose of an equestrian event 
or a horseback riding school. In order for the exemption criteria to be applicable, the 
use has to be identified as a Permitted Use under the respective Land Use 
Designations. 

 
3. Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 

 
The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) was last updated in 2020 and provides overall 
policy direction on matters of provincial interest related to land use and development in 
Ontario. Where the policies of provincial plans address the same, similar, related, or 
overlapping matters as the policies of the PPS, applying the more specific policies of 
the provincial plan satisfies the more general requirements of the PPS. 

 
The PPS provides for appropriate development while protecting resources of provincial 
interest, public health and safety, and the quality of the natural and built environment. 
The PPS supports improved land use planning and management, which contributes to 
a more effective and efficient land use planning system. 

 
A large percentage of the lands within the NEP Area may be described as rural in 
nature. The PPS speaks to both ‘rural areas’ and ‘rural lands’ within municipalities 
under Sections 1.1.4 and 1.1.5 respectively. Rural area policies relate to a system of 
lands and may include rural settlement areas, prime agricultural areas, etc., while rural 
land policies relate specifically to lands that are located outside settlement areas and 
outside prime agricultural areas. The municipalities within the NEP Area all have 
delineated settlement areas and a rural land base. The rural areas section of the PPS 
provides for the objective to direct development and growth to settlement areas where 
there is available infrastructure and community services. 

 
Section 2.0 of the PPS identifies the province’s objectives respecting the long-term 
protection of natural heritage, water resources and cultural heritage, and archaeological 
resources for their economic, environmental, and social benefits. Part 2.1 requires that 
natural features and areas shall be protected for the long term and Part 2.1.2 identifies 
that the diversity and connectivity of natural features in an area, and the long-term 
ecological function and biodiversity of natural heritage systems, should be maintained, 
restored, or, where possible, improved, recognizing linkages between and among 
natural heritage features and areas, surface water features and ground water features. 



6  

economy and promotes the protection of agricultural and other resource-related uses on 
rural lands. In prime agricultural areas, permitted uses and activities include agricultural 
uses, agriculture-related uses, and on-farm diversified uses. The PPS definition for 
agricultural use is consistent with the NEP (2017) definition. 

 
Section 2.3 of the PPS speaks directly to how agricultural lands should be planned for 
throughout the province. Section 2.3.1 states: Prime agricultural areas shall be 
protected for long-term use for agriculture. Section 2.3.3.1 permits agricultural uses, 
agriculture-related uses, and on-farm diversified uses in prime agricultural areas; 
however, this section further clarifies that agriculture-related uses and on-farm 
diversified uses shall be compatible with, and shall not hinder, surrounding agricultural 
operations. Additional development is only permitted if compatibility with agricultural 
operations can be demonstrated. Thus, the PPS requires that impacts on the broader 
agricultural system be considered when analyzing the appropriateness of a site-specific 
use. Section 2.3.4.1 discourages the creation of new lots in prime agricultural areas 
except in a few circumstances. These circumstances are incorporated under Part 2.4.20 
of the NEP with limited revision. 

 
4. Greenbelt Plan (2017) 

 
The Greenbelt Act authorized the preparation of the Greenbelt Plan, which was 
approved in February 2005 and updated in 2017 through the 2015 Co-ordinated Land 
Use Plan Review. The Greenbelt Plan Area includes all of the NEP Area. The policies 
of the NEP are the policies of the Greenbelt Plan for the NEP Area except for the Open 
Space and Trails Policies set out in Section 3.3 of the Greenbelt Plan. The planning, 
construction, and maintenance of parkland, open space, and trails in the NEP Area 
must also comply with the policies in Section 3.3 of the Greenbelt Plan. Further, Section 
5.6 identifies amendments to the NEP that remain governed by and are to be dealt with 
in accordance with the provisions of the NEPDA. 

The Protected Countryside contains an Agricultural System that provides a continuous, 
productive, and permanent agricultural land base and a complementary agri-food 
network. The Agricultural System of the Greenbelt Plan is comprised of the agricultural 
land base (prime agricultural areas, including specialty crop areas, and rural lands), and 
the agri-food network, which has components (infrastructure, services, and assets) that 
support agricultural viability but is not a designation with a list of permitted uses. While 
the Greenbelt Plan identifies the boundaries of the specialty crop areas, it relies on 
official plans to further delineate prime agricultural areas and rural lands based on 
provincial mapping and guidance. 

Rural lands are those lands outside of settlement areas that are not prime agricultural 
areas and are generally designated as rural or open spaces within official plans. A full 



7  

range of existing and new agricultural uses, agriculture-related uses, on-farm diversified 
uses, and normal farm practices are permitted in the Natural Heritage System for the 
Growth Plan and the Greenbelt Natural Heritage System. Although new agricultural 
buildings are allowed within the Natural Heritage System, other policies such as those 
regarding key natural heritage features continue to apply (i.e., Greenbelt Plan Part 
3.2.2.1; A Place to Grow Parts 4.2.2.3, 4.2.3, and 4.2.4). 

New buildings and structures are not subject to the Natural Heritage System 
development policies (Part 3.2.2.3) but are subject to the Key Natural Heritage Features 
and Key Hydrologic Features policies in Part 3.2.5. Similar to the NEP, the Greenbelt 
Plan prohibits development within Key Natural Heritage Features (KNHFs) of the 
Protected Countryside, with limited exceptions. Part 3.2.5.1 does not provide an 
exception for agriculture, so new buildings and structures for agricultural uses, 
agriculture-related uses, or on-farm diversified uses are not permitted in key natural 
heritage features or key hydrologic features. 

However, expansions or alterations to existing buildings and structures for agricultural 
uses, agriculture-related uses, or on-farm diversified uses that are within key hydrologic 
features and key natural heritage features, and their associated vegetation protection 
zones, are permitted, provided that it can be demonstrated that several criteria are met 
including that there is no alternative to developing in the feature, and that where 
required, that the expansion or alteration in the feature is minimized. In the vegetation 
protection zone, the expansion or alteration is required to be directed away from the 
feature to the maximum extent possible. The impact of the expansion or alteration on 
the feature and its functions is minimized and mitigated to the maximum extent possible 
(Greenbelt Plan 4.5.5, Growth Plan 4.2.3.1f). 

5. Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe 
 

A Place to Grow: Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe (Office Consolidation, 
2020) (the “Growth Plan”) applies to lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe (GGH) 
and provides direction on how to manage growth. Emphasis is placed on intensification 
and redevelopment in existing settlements and built-up areas rather than sprawl or 
haphazard expansion that requires new municipal services (e.g., sewers and water). 

The Growth Plan and Greenbelt Plan are intended to work together. Areas to be 
protected in the GGH were established first (in the Greenbelt Plan) and then areas, 
where development could be considered, were identified second (in the Growth Plan). 
Both the Growth Plan (Section 1.4) and its enabling legislation (Places to Grow Act, 
2005), indicate that in considering the Growth Plan in relation to other provincial plans 
and policies (e.g., the NEP), the planning direction to be followed is the one that 
“provides more protection to the natural environment or human health”. In considering 



8  

the hierarchy of provincial plans and policies governing this area and the provisions 
within those documents, the greatest protection to the natural environment and human 
health (particularly the natural environment), is accomplished most effectively through 
the policies and appropriate land use designations of the NEP. 

The Natural Heritage System of the Growth Plan is not identified in the NEP Area. 
 

6. Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation Plan (ORMCP) 
 

The ORMCP provides land use planning direction to protect the Moraine’s ecologic and 
hydrologic features and functions. Although the Oak Ridges Moraine is also part of the 
Greenbelt, the Greenbelt Plan specifies that the policies of the ORMCP continue to 
apply in the Greenbelt Plan area. The Oak Ridges Moraine contains many landform 
types that affect the ecological and hydrological character of the moraine. The Plan’s 
Natural Core Area and Natural Linkage Area designations are considered the natural 
heritage system for the Moraine. These areas have the highest concentration of natural 
heritage features and provide a continuous east-west ecological connection across the 
entire Plan Area. 

The Plan also identifies key natural heritage features (such as ANSIs and woodlands) 
and key hydrologic features (such as kettle lakes and springs). In Natural Core Areas, 
Natural Linkage Areas, and Countryside Areas, only very restricted new resource 
management, recreational and infrastructure uses are permitted within these features. 
Development near these key natural heritage features and key hydrologic features is 
only allowed if it will not adversely affect these features. Areas with significant 
landscape character are identified as Landform Conservation Areas, and development 
is required to meet stringent review standards to ensure protection. 

In the context of the ORMCP, prime agricultural areas may be found within the 
Countryside Area designation, but portions of the Natural Core Area and Natural 
Linkage Area designations may also include prime agricultural areas. Prime agricultural 
areas in the ORMCP are to be identified in accordance with the broader Agricultural 
System, once established, recognizing both the agricultural land base and Agri-food 
Network components. Linkages to the Agricultural System outside of the Oak Ridges 
Moraine Area should also be considered. 

7. Regional and local planning context 
 

The role of municipalities in supporting the Agricultural System for the GGH as identified 
in the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe is to update prime agricultural 
area mapping in accordance with the provincial direction and to develop economic 
development programs and other support for agriculture with the intent to sustain and 
enhance the Agricultural System such as through regional agri-food strategies and other 



9  

economic incentives and approaches, agricultural advisory committees, and 
agrologist/dedicated agricultural support staff (these programs would apply within NEP 
Area). The NEC continues to consult with Escarpment municipalities to ensure 
municipal agricultural policies are considered in NEC decision-making. However, the 
provincial mapping of the Agricultural System prevails over existing municipal mapping 
until municipalities have updated their official plans in accordance with the province’s 
Implementation Procedures. 

 
The NEP Part 2 Development Criteria are used as minimum standards for assessing 
the conformity of local official plans, secondary plans, and, where applicable, zoning by-
laws and for administering site-plan control approvals. If an official plan, secondary plan, 
zoning by-law, or other planning approval is silent on one or more Development Criteria 
included in the NEP, the Development Criteria of the NEP still apply. 

 
8. Provincial Guidelines 

 
To assist with the implementation of its policies and plans, the province has released 
several guidelines and technical supporting documents outlining best practices to be 
employed in managing agricultural resources. The following guidelines are relevant to 
the review of NEP agricultural policies 

Guidelines of Permitted Uses in Ontario’s Prime Agricultural Areas, 2016, Ontario 
Ministry of Agriculture Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA), Publication 851. 

OMAFRA released the Guidelines on Permitted Uses in Ontario’s Prime Agricultural 
Areas Guidelines in 2016. These Guidelines are intended to support the interpretation of 
the PPS (2020) agricultural policies. The guidelines are clear in stating they are best 
practices and are not prescribed standards that must be met. While the OMAFRA 
Guidelines are available to support the interpretation of related policies in the PPS, it is 
important to remember that these Guidelines must still be viewed through the lens of the 
NEP, and it should be recognized that provincial plan policies (including the NEP), take 
precedence over the PPS to the extent of any conflict. NEC staff have consulted with 
OMAFRA on several occasions to get support for policy and guideline interpretation and 
implementation. 

 
Additional supporting documents and Guidelines for the implementation of agricultural 
policies include: 

 
• Implementation Procedures for the Agricultural System in Ontario’s Greater 

Golden Horseshoe, Feb 2018”, OMAFRA, Publication 856 



10  

• Agricultural System Mapping Method, January 2018, OMAFRA, Technical 
Document 

• Template for Agricultural Land Base Refinements in the Greater Golden 
Horseshoe, OMAFRA 2018. 

• Agricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) Guidelines (Draft), March 2018, OMAFRA 
 

C. Chronology of agriculture-related staff reports, Development Permit 
Applications, and Plan amendments 

 

June 2017: New NEP is released. New and updated agricultural policies related to 
agriculture (e.g., on-farm diversified uses, agriculture-related uses). 

November 2017: Commission passes a motion directing staff to investigate how the 
NEP can address agriculture-related uses, including rural density transfer, farm labour 
housing, secondary dwelling relating to the agricultural industry, farm succession 
planning, agricultural labour shortages, and other issues applicable to the NEC 
involvement with agricultural lands. The Chair writes to the Minister informing them of 
the Commission’s concerns and related motions regarding the NEP’s agricultural 
policies. 

February 2018: Province releases “Implementation Procedures for the Agricultural 
System in Ontario’s Greater Golden Horseshoe” that includes Agricultural System 
mapping. 

March 2018: Minister writes Chair advising of extensive consultation and consideration 
of provincial policies in the development and approval of new NEP and expresses 
concern with re-examining NEP policies so soon after a comprehensive review. The 
Minister requests that the Commission allow for the updated Plan to be implemented 
over three years and report back with an assessment of the lessons learned through 
early implementation. The Minister also reminded the Commission of its mandate to 
uphold the purpose and objectives of the Plan and Act and to make decisions in 
accordance with the policies of the Plan. 

April 18, 2018: NEC staff report was presented to the Commission to provide 
information and context in response to the Commission’s motion made in November 
2017. The Report included background regarding Ontario’s land use planning 
framework, the Coordinated Provincial Land Use Planning Review, and the NEPDA. 
The report highlighted the need for guidelines and policies released by the province to 
be considered within the NEP through the lens of the purpose and objectives of the 
NEPDA and NEP. The Commission rescinds its motion in November 2017 after 
considering the Minister’s letter. 



11  

February 2020: Region of Niagara has a planning consultant undertake a review of 
NEP agricultural policies and implications to wineries. The consultant identifies several 
challenges with NEP policies. 

October 2020: The Chair and Director meet with Ontario Craft Winery Council 
President, who express concerns that NEP agricultural policies do not adequately 
support the wine sector. 

September 15, 2021: NEC staff presented an Information and Discussion Report on 
NEP Agricultural Policies to Commission. The report provided a high-level background 
of the NEP agricultural policies and highlighted areas where NEC staff have expressed 
concerns regarding the policies and sought further direction from the Commission. The 
Commission requested staff return to the November (2021) policy meeting with a review 
and analysis of the agricultural policies of the NEP for the Commission’s review and 
consideration. 

May 19, 2021: Staff Report on Policy Guideline Development for Temporary Dwelling 
Units Accessory to Agricultural Uses presented to the Commission. The Report 
provided the background and context setting for the development of NEP Guidelines. 

June 2021: NEC Director and senior staff meet with OCW Council to share information 
on the development of Policy Guidance. Council requests the opportunity to provide 
further input as Policy Guidance material is being developed. 

November 17, 2021: NEC staff presented a Staff Report on NEP agricultural policies to 
the Commission, including an analysis of the decisions on Development Permit 
Applications for agricultural uses since the 2017 NEP came into effect. Following a 
review and discussion of agricultural policies, the Commission directed staff to proceed 
with initiating a Plan Amendment respecting Part 1.4.3.2 Escarpment Protection Area 
ARUs and OFDUs in prime agricultural areas, and agricultural uses in Earth Science 
Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest. Additionally, the Commission directed staff to 
continue to undertake further consideration and review of additional agricultural policy 
topic areas. The Chair wrote to the Minister to report on the Commission’s experience 
and concerns regarding agricultural policies of the NEP and requested that staff defer 
the preparation of policy guidance related to agricultural policies until the Commission 
has considered the matter further. 

September 2022: NEC Director and Senior Staff meeting with OCW Council to update 
progress on scoping of an agricultural policy amendment proposal and Guidance 
material. 



12  

October 2022: OCW and Ontario Federation of Agriculture (OFA) provide submissions 
respecting revisions to the NEP agricultural policies to the NEC for consideration and 
request delegations to the Commission at their November 2022 policy meeting. 

Development Permit Application N/A/2020-2021/748 was submitted in March 2021, 
to construct a 1.5-story, ± 185.8 sq m (± 2000 sq ft) storage barn, with a height to peak 
of ± 6.1 m (± 20 ft), on an existing 3.48 ha (8.6 ac) lot to be reconfigured through a 
proposed boundary adjustment. Parcel A would be reconfigured from a 3.5 ha (8.6 ac) 
to ± 5.1 ha (± 12.7 ac) lot and would contain the existing dwelling, tree farm operation, 
and proposed barn. Parcel B would be reconfigured from a 2.1 ha (5.4 ac) to ± 0.6 ha (± 
1.4 ac) lot and would remain vacant. Staff recommended refusal on the basis that the 
subject property is within an Earth Science Area of Natural and Scientific Interest 
(ANSI), which is considered a key natural heritage feature by the Niagara Escarpment 
Plan (NEP). Agriculture is not listed as an exception to the prohibition on development 
within key natural heritage features. The Commission approved the application, with 
conditions of approval, in August 2021, noting that Development Permit 
#8139/N/A/2003-2004/358 for a barn had been approved previously (under the previous 
NEP). 

Development Permit Application H/C/2021-2022/17 was submitted to establish an on- 
farm diversified use (agri-tourism), consisting of pick your own lavender, and viewing 
opportunities, and to establish a 1,572 sq m (16,920.86 sq ft), 45-car parking area, on 
an existing 8.44 ha (20.85 ac) lot that supports a lavender farm, farm produce stand 
and single dwelling. The application was recommended for refusal by staff as the 
subject property was not within a prime agricultural area in accordance with Part 1.4.3.2 
of the NEP. The Commission approved the Development Permit application as 
submitted, subject to conditions of approval. The Commission’s decision was informed 
by Halton Region comments, which confirmed that the subject land exhibits 
characteristics of ongoing agriculture and that the Region is contemplating 
redesignating the subject project to a prime agricultural area through the Region OP 
review. 

Development Permit Application S/A/2020-2021/469 was submitted in December 
2020, to establish a lavender and rose cultivation farm and on-farm diversified use (agri- 
tourism). The proposal included the processing and distilling of lavender, a retail outlet, 
and parking area. Staff recommended refusal of the OFDU aspects (parking, farm 
tours), as the property is not mapped as a prime agricultural area and OFDUs are 
therefore not Permitted Use as per Part 1.4.3.2. Staff recommended approval of the 
agricultural and home industry/occupation components of the proposal. The 
Commission approved the Development Permit application as submitted, subject to 
conditions of approval, for the following reasons: the applicant proved through an 
independent agrologist that the land is prime agricultural land; the proposal’s 



13  

compatibility with other agricultural uses and no negative impacts on Escarpment 
scenery; and the exemption of the land designation is an option available at the County 
of Simcoe. The Commission decision was appealed, and the matter is now scheduled 
for a Hearing with the Ontario Land Tribunal. 

Development Permit Application N/R/2018-2019/67 was submitted in April 2018, to 
construct a 1-story ±491.4 m² (±5,289 ft²) single dwelling with a maximum height to 
peak of ±8.84 m (±29.0 ft.), a 2-story, ±180.6 m² (±1,944 ft²) agricultural structure (horse 
barn) with a maximum height to peak of ±6.4 m (±21.0 ft.), septic system, well, 
driveway, and associated site alteration including the removal of approximately 1.21 ha 
of trees (tree plantation) to facilitate the creation of pasture land (paddocks, riding ring) 
on a 4.0 ha (10.0 ac) vacant parcel. NEC staff recommended refusal of the application 
on the basis that the horse barn, riding ring, and pastureland were proposed within a 
Significant Woodland, which is considered a key natural heritage feature by the NEP. 
Agricultural uses are not listed as an exception to the prohibition on development within 
key natural heritage features. The Commission approved the application, subject to 
conditions of approval, for the following reasons: the wooded area was established as a 
plantation intended for harvesting; as identified in the NEC staff report, agro-forestry is 
included in the definition of agriculture in the NEP; and the plantation was not intended 
to form part of the significant woodland. Additionally, the Commission noted that 
harvesting of the plantation would be permitted under the NEP, and information has 
been provided demonstrating that the plantation area should not be considered part of 
the significant woodland. 

 
D. Analysis / Amendment considerations 

 

Does the proposed Amendment satisfy and reflect the purpose and objectives 
of the NEPDA? 

a) The purpose of the Act is, “to provide for the maintenance of the Niagara Escarpment 
and land in its vicinity substantially as a continuous natural environment, and to ensure 
only such development occurs as is compatible with the natural environment”. 

b) The objectives of the Act and Plan are to: 
 

• protect unique ecologic and historic areas; 
• maintain and enhance the quality and character of natural streams and water 

supplies; 
• provide adequate opportunities for outdoor recreation; 
• maintain and enhance the open landscape character of the Niagara Escarpment 

in so far as possible, by such means as compatible farming or forestry and by 
preserving the natural scenery; 

• ensure that all new development is compatible with the purpose of the Act; 



14  

• provide for adequate public access to the Niagara Escarpment; and, 
• support municipalities within the Niagara Escarpment Plan Area in their exercise 

of the planning functions conferred upon them by the Planning Act. 
 

One of the seven objectives of the NEPDA and the NEP speaks to maintaining and 
enhancing the open landscape character of the Niagara Escarpment in so far as 
possible, by such means as compatible farming or forestry, and by preserving the 
natural scenery. This objective is foundational to achieving the Purpose of the Plan and 
the Act; to provide for the maintenance of the Escarpment and land in its vicinity 
substantially as a continuous natural environment, and to ensure only such 
development occurs as is compatible with that natural environment. Compatible farming 
is therefore considered as a mechanism to achieve an objective of the NEP, but it is not 
a stand-alone objective, nor is it central to the environment-first principle of the NEP. 
Additionally, agricultural land, from a planning perspective, may act as a buffer to 
protect significant or sensitive natural features found on the Escarpment. 

Compatible farming and forestry may limit the types of farming and forestry operations 
on the Escarpment, in order to be consistent with the Purpose and Objectives of the 
NEP. In other words, farming and other forms of compatible development may take 
place within the NEP area if they can demonstrate compatibility and support the 
Purpose and objectives of the NEP. This context may assist in understanding the lens 
that is applied to proposed development in the NEP Area, versus those areas outside 
the NEP Area, where limitations may not be necessary or appropriate. 

Permitted Uses in Escarpment Protection Area Part 1.4.3.2 
 

Within the NEP Area, prime agricultural areas and “rural” areas within the agricultural 
land base are treated differently within the Escarpment Protection Area and Escarpment 
Rural Area land use designations. NEP Permitted Use policy 1.4.3.2 identifies that on- 
farm diversified uses (OFDUs) and agricultural-related uses (ARUs) are permitted within 
prime agricultural areas in the Escarpment Protection Area, while OFDUs and ARUs are 
permitted in non-prime agricultural areas within the Escarpment Rural Areas. 

 
A prime agricultural area is defined in the NEP as an area where prime agricultural 
lands predominate. This includes areas of prime agricultural lands and associated 
Canada Land Inventory Class 4 through 7 lands, and additional areas where there is a 
local concentration of farms that exhibit characteristics of ongoing agriculture. Prime 
agricultural areas may be identified by the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food 
using guidelines developed by the province as amended from time to time. A prime 
agricultural area may also be identified through an alternative agricultural land 
evaluation system approved by the province. 



15  

As stated in the Introduction, Landscape Approach section of the NEP, the agricultural 
land base is comprised of prime agricultural areas including specialty crop areas, as 
well as rural lands where active agricultural and related activities are ongoing. In the 
context of the NEP, prime agricultural areas are frequently found within the Escarpment 
Rural Area land use designation, but prime agricultural areas are not excluded from 
being identified within the other land use designations. In the context of implementing 
the NEP, it is important to understand that prime agricultural areas in the NEP Area 
should be identified in accordance with the broader Agricultural System once 
established, recognizing both the agricultural land base and the agri-food network 
components. 

 
Prime agricultural areas are not to be identified on an ad hoc basis and must be done in 
a manner consistent with OMAFRA’s Implementation Procedures for the Agricultural 
System in Ontario’s Greater Golden Horseshoe1. The exercise of refining agricultural 
land base mapping is typically undertaken by a municipality through the municipal 
Comprehensive Review or Official Plan review process and approved by the Ministry of 
Municipal Affairs and Housing (MMAH). A Land Evaluation and Area Review (LEAR) or 
an Agricultural Land Evaluation System (ALES) study may be conducted to help identify 
prime agricultural areas or the agricultural land base more broadly, for designation in 
official plans. 

 
Not all municipalities in the NEP Area include prime agricultural area mapping in their 
Official Plans (e.g., Grey County), which also creates challenges to their identification 
and to implementation of NEP Part 1.4.3.2, which requires the identification of prime 
agricultural areas. Again, the NEC cannot identify or designate lands as prime 
agricultural areas on a site-specific, individual application basis. 

 
Limiting OFDUs and ARUs to be considered only in prime agricultural areas in the 
Escarpment Protection Area designation was not a recommendation advanced by NEC 
staff or the Commission during the time of the 2015 Coordinated Land Use Planning 
Review. The underlying policy intent for these uses, as made clear through provincial 
policy, is to provide the farming community with the services and income-generating 
opportunities to ensure the ongoing viability of agricultural uses, regardless of whether 
the operation is situated in an identified prime agricultural area or other rural lands. 
Rural lands outside of prime agricultural areas play an important role in the Agri-food 
system. 

 
 
 

1 Ontario Ministry of Agricultural, Food and Rural Affairs. 2020. Implementation Procedures for the Agricultural 
System in Ontario’s Greater Golden Horseshoe. Supplementary Direction to A Place to Grow: Growth Plan for the 
Greater Golden Horseshoe. Queen’s Printer for Ontario. Toronto, ON. Publication 856. 

http://www.omafra.gov.on.ca/english/landuse/imp2019.pdf
http://www.omafra.gov.on.ca/english/landuse/imp2019.pdf
http://www.omafra.gov.on.ca/english/landuse/agri-landbase.htm


16  

It is NEC staff’s understanding that the current Part 1.4.3.2 Escarpment Protection Area 
policy emerged through the 2015 Coordinated Land Use Planning Review, as a means 
to support the implementation of the higher-level Plan Purpose and Objectives. The 
underlying intention, as understood by NEC staff, was to prevent the potential for the 
proliferation of some of the more intensive types of large-scale OFDUs and ARUs (e.g., 
large-scale grain elevators, feed mills) on the Escarpment rural landscape, as such 
uses could result in a conflict with the Purpose of the NEP respecting the maintenance 
of open landscape character and the Objectives respecting scenic quality. Within the 
context of the NEP, the permitted uses of OFDUs and ARUs are accompanied by 
Development Criteria that must be met, including gross floor area criteria, to ensure that 
such development does not override the primary agricultural use of the land and can 
continue to meet the Purpose and Objectives of the NEP. Additional Development 
Criteria in Part 2.13 Landform Conservation would also be required to be met, ensuring 
landform conservation, and reviewing built form from a visual and environmental 
perspective to ensure it is compatible with the Escarpment environment and does not 
dominate the landscape. 

 
Agricultural uses in Key Natural Heritage Features (KNHFs) 

 
Agriculture proposed in Earth Science Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest 

 
Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest (ANSIs) are areas of land and/or water 
containing natural landscapes or features that have been identified as having life 
science and/or earth science, values related to natural heritage protection, scientific 
study, or education. ANSIs are identified as provincially significant by the MNRF, using 
evaluation procedures established by the province, and amended from time to time. 
ANSIs vary in their type and level of significance. Earth Science ANSIs are geological in 
nature and consist of some of the most significant representative examples of the 
bedrock, fossil, and landforms in Ontario and include examples of ongoing geological 
processes. 

 
The NEP Part 2.7 identifies Key Natural Heritage Features (KNHFs), which include both 
Life Science and Earth Science ANSIs. NEP Part 2.7 prohibits development within 
identified KNHFs, with limited exceptions for the development types listed in Part 2.7.1, 
and subject to meeting applicable Development Criteria. While accessory uses/facilities 
to single dwellings are identified as an exception to the prohibition of development 
within Earth Science ANSIs, agriculture/agricultural uses are not included in the list of 
exceptions to the prohibition of development within an Earth Science ANSI. 

 
Notably, neither the Greenbelt Plan (GP) nor the Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation 
Plan (ORMCP) includes Earth Science ANSIs as KNHFs (the list includes Life Science 



17  

ANSIs), although the ORMCP does include additional policies to protect Earth Science 
ANSIs from certain types of development within designated areas with significant 
landscape character called Landform Conservation Areas. 

 
Earth Science ANSIs are generally understood to be less sensitive to general forms of 
development and site alteration than Life Science ANSIs. Depending upon the values 
for which an ANSI was designated and the sensitivity of the ANSI feature, in principle, 
agriculture and accessory uses to agriculture may be acceptable forms of development 
that would generally not conflict with the maintenance of the landform, provided best 
management practices are employed. It is recognized that similar to when permitted 
types of development are proposed within other key natural heritage features (e.g., a 
single dwelling in a significant woodland), there may be instances where technical 
studies (e.g., hydrology, karst), would be required to demonstrate compatibility with the 
feature and its functions. Some Earth Science ANSI features like the Fonthill Kame, 
may be considered an Escarpment related landform, and as such, agricultural 
development would still be required to ensure that the Kame feature is maintained and 
enhanced, throughout the planning, design, and construction. 

 
The Commission has been presented with one DPA to date (see related files section 
above), that staff recommended refusal of the application on the basis that the 
agricultural development (a barn), was proposed within an identified Provincially 
Significant Earth Science ANSI (Fonthill Kame-Delta ANSI). Designated Provincial 
ANSIs have a “checklist” that documents the values for which the ANSI was identified, 
as well as information on types of activities that have the potential to impact the feature. 
In this specific DPA example, the checklist identified that much of the Earth Science 
ANSI feature was already in agricultural production, and that provided certain mitigation 
measures were taken (e.g., avoiding alteration of contours), agriculture was identified as 
an activity that was unlikely to cause a negative impact to the ANSI feature. 

 
The MNRF was consulted and did not express any concerns with the proposed 
development, provided that care was taken to ensure that the feature was not impacted 
by the proposed development. Regardless, the current NEP policy (Part 2.7.1), does not 
provide for an exception for agricultural uses to the prohibition of development in a 
KNHF, and this necessitates a staff recommendation of refusal. The Commission did 
not support the staff recommendation in this instance and approved the application on 
the basis that the agriculture was an existing use and the barn had previously been 
approved on the subject property through a previous DPA (however staff notes this 
Permit, which expired was assessed under the previous 2005 NEP). 



18  

Therefore, NEC staff is proposing an amendment to the Part 2.7 policies to allow 
consideration for the development of agricultural uses, agricultural-related uses, and on- 
farm diversified uses in Earth Science ANSIs, provided conditions are met and subject 
to all other applicable Development Criteria. 

As identified previously, Ontario Regulation 828/90 provides for general agricultural 
development to be exempt from requiring a Development Permit (if identified as a 
Permitted Use in Part 1 of the NEP), provided all identified criteria are met. If a use is 
identified as being a Permitted Use in Part 1 of the NEP, the development may not 
require a Development Permit, and therefore may not be assessed against the Part 2 
criteria respecting natural heritage features. 

Agricultural uses in (other) Key Natural Heritage Features 
 

The Commission has been presented with DP applications where staff has 
recommended refusal on the basis that the development was proposed within a KNHF 
(namely a Significant Woodland), and as provided in the Earth Science ANSI discussion 
above. The NEP Part 2.7.1 does not provide for an exception for agricultural uses in 
KNHF (provided a DP is required). 

 
Notwithstanding the issue identified specific to agricultural uses proposed within Earth 
Science ANSIs, as described above, staff notes that the general NEP policy approach 
of prohibiting new agricultural development in all other KNHFs (e.g., significant 
woodlands, significant wildlife habitat), is consistent with the policies for agricultural 
development concerning KNHF and key hydrologic features described in the Greenbelt 
Plan, Growth Plan, and ORMCP. Staff maintains that the current policy in Part 2.7 is in 
keeping with the “environment-first” principle of the NEP. Farming and other forms of 
compatible development may take place within the NEP Area, only if the use has been 
demonstrated to support the Purpose and Objectives of the NEP. 

 
However, as described in Section B Greenbelt Plan above, staff observes that, unlike 
the NEP, the Greenbelt Plan and Growth Plan do provide policies that support 
consideration of expansion of existing buildings and structures for agricultural uses, 
agricultural-related uses, and on-farm diversified uses (emphasis added). Greenbelt 
Plan Part 4.5.5 Existing uses, provides that expansions or alterations to existing 
buildings and structures for agricultural uses, agricultural-related uses, or on-farm 
diversified uses may be considered in KNHFs and key hydrologic features and their 
associated vegetation protection zones provided that it can be demonstrated that there 
is no alternative, and the expansion or alteration in the feature is minimized and, in the 
vegetation protection zone, is directed away from the feature to the maximum extent 



19  

possible, and the impact of the development on the feature and its functions is 
minimized and mitigated. 

 
The NEP Part 2.7.1 provides exceptions to the general prohibition of development 
within KNHFs for single dwellings and accessory facilities if disturbance can be 
minimized and temporary. The NEP works on an avoidance first principle with staff 
working with applicants to determine first and foremost if citing the development in the 
feature can be avoided through alternate siting and design. Where unavoidable, it must 
be demonstrated that impacts can be minimized which may require a natural heritage 
evaluation or equivalent study. 

 
While staff maintains that the current NEP policies respecting the prohibition of new 
agricultural uses (requiring a Development Permit), are consistent with the other 
provincial plans, staff is proposing additional NEP policies that would provide an 
opportunity for the expansion of existing agricultural uses, in certain key natural heritage 
features consistent with the other provincial plans and provided the test of minimal 
impact can be met. 

 
Staff finds that the proposal for the introduction of policy provisions allowing 
consideration of the expansion of existing agricultural uses in key natural heritage 
features (outside of wetlands), is consistent with the Purpose and Objectives of the 
Plan. Part 2.3 Existing Use Development Criteria (as well as all other applicable 
Development Criteria) would also apply to such applications. The proposed new policy 
provision would maintain the level of protection the current NEP provides for all Key 
Hydrologic Features (including all wetlands) in the NEP Area, which is consistent with 
the Purpose and Objectives of the Plan. 

 
While Staff cautions that site-specific, individual development proposals should not be 
used as the basis to drive Plan-wide policy review and/or change, in the site-specific 
examples highlighted, the applications described have brought attention to the policy 
conflict / unintended policy implication that has broader Plan-wide implications, and this 
is the basis for the amendment proposals being presented by staff for consideration. 

 
Maple syrup harvesting in the Escarpment Natural Area 

 
As noted previously, O. Reg. 828/90 provides exemptions from the requirement for a 
Development Permit for some forms of general agricultural development, provided the 
identified criteria are met. Section 5 of the Regulation identifies that the identified 
classes of development are exempt from the requirement of obtaining a Development 



20  

Permit if the use is listed as a Permitted Use under the Land Use policies of the NEP 
and determined to not conflict with a Development Permit issued under the Act. 

 
The Escarpment Natural Area designation only permits existing agricultural uses, on- 
farm diversified uses, and agricultural-related uses. No new agricultural uses are 
permitted, in keeping with the objectives of this designation, to protect and where 
possible enhance the most sensitive natural and scenic resources of the Escarpment. 

 
Maple sugar harvesting is identified in the definition of general agricultural development 
in Reg. 828/90 and maple syrup production is defined as an agricultural use in the NEP. 
Over the years, NEC staff have received inquiries and/or applications for the tapping of 
trees in the Escarpment Natural Area designation. Staff has been unable to confirm an 
exemption for such a use, as the O. Reg. 828/90 exemption provision for general 
agricultural development is not applicable, given that agricultural development/(new) 
agricultural uses are not identified as a permitted use in the Escarpment Natural Area 
designation. Staff is also unable to process the Development Permit Application with a 
favorable recommendation to support the use, again, given it is not identified as a 
Permitted Use in Part 1.3.3. 

 
Maple sugar harvesting (i.e., the tapping of the maple trees to collect the sap and 
running of lines between trees), is generally understood to be non-invasive in nature. 
Permitting this specific and limited aspect of maple syrup production would not offend 
the objectives of the Escarpment Natural Area designation. The policy amendment 
proposes to introduce maple sugar harvesting as a permitted use in Part 1.3.3 
Escarpment Natural Area. The permitted use would be restricted to the harvesting of 
sap exclusively, and not include any production facilities. Such production facilities 
would be required to be located outside of the Escarpment Natural Area designation. 
Introducing maple sugar harvesting as a permitted use in the Escarpment Natural Area 
is considered a housekeeping matter that would enable the O. Reg. 828/90 exemption 
to be applicable. 

 
Known Stakeholder Positions 

 
Significant input from agricultural stakeholder groups and the farming community, in 
general, was received during the 2015 Co-ordinated Land Use Planning Review. Staff 
and the Commission considered all the submissions in making its recommendations to 
the government. This consultation resulted in a greater range of Permitted Uses in 
Escarpment rural areas and more flexible winery policies. Notwithstanding these 
positive outcomes, there remains concern by agricultural stakeholders that the revisions 
have not gone far enough to 



21  

Ontario Craft Wineries 
 

The Ontario Craft Wineries (OCW) (formerly the Wine Council of Ontario), is a non-profit 
trade association whose mission is to champion and advocate for the growth and 
success of Ontario VQA wine producers, representing over 100 wineries across 
Ontario. NEC senior staff met with members of the OCW, in August of 2021 and 
September of 2022 to discuss opportunities and issues that remain of concern to their 
member groups, as they relate to the NEP agricultural policies. The OCW made an 
additional submission to the NEC on October 25, 2022, outlining remaining concerns 
with how the 2017 NEP addresses agriculture in the NEP Area, including defining 
“good” or “normal” agricultural practices in the context of O. Reg. 828/90, concerns with 
remaining winery policies, OFDUs and ARUs, seasonal/temporary events, and on-site 
accommodations beyond that currently permitted by the NEP. 

Ontario Federation of Agriculture 
 

The Ontario Federation of Agriculture (OFA) represents more than 38,000 farm family 
members across the province, and advocates for and supports their membership and 
the agri-food industry on issues, legislation, and regulations under all levels of 
government. The OFA and its member groups have made submissions in support of a 
proposed amendment to the NEP Escarpment Protection Area Part 1.4.3.2 respecting 
OFDUs and ARUs being permitted in prime agricultural areas only. The OFA is 
supportive of an amendment to Part 1.4.3.2 to be consistent with the Permitted Use of 
the Escarpment Rural Area, identifying that such an amendment would have the 
potential to streamline the policies, and in doing so improve economic potential within 
the Agri-Food System by providing Ontario Farmers in these areas with the opportunity 
to diversify their farm business. 

E. Initiating the Amendment 
 

Section 6.1(3) of the NEPDA provides that: “Where, in the opinion of the Commission, 
an application for an amendment does not disclose a planning justification for the 
amendment, is not in the public interest, is without merit, is frivolous or vexatious or is 
made only for the purposes of delay, the Commission shall inform the Minister of its 
opinion and, where the Minister concurs in that opinion, the Minister shall inform the 
applicant in writing of his or her opinion and notify the applicant that unless the applicant 
makes written representations thereon to the Ministry within such time as the Minister 
specifies in the notice, not being less than 15 days from the time the notice is given, the 
provisions of this Act in respect of the considerations of the amendment shall not apply, 
and approval of the amendment shall be deemed to be refused.” 



22  

Matters raised in the review of the proposal at this stage are noted to assist in coming to 
a determination if the application should be initiated under s. 6.1(2) of the NEPDA, and 
if so, to also provide the commenting agencies and the public with an initial 
understanding of the application. The planning considerations as presented are not 
a complete review or analysis of the final merits of the application either in terms 
of the NEP or any other relevant legislation or regulation. 

In reviewing the proposed amendment, several key issues must be addressed. All 
amendment proposals must be considered against the Purpose and Objectives of the 
NEPDA, and the Objectives and provisions of the NEP, and be consistent (to the extent 
appropriate), with the other provincial policies. 

Justification for the Amendment 
 

In order to initiate an Amendment, the NEC under Section 6.1(2.1) of the NEPDA must 
be satisfied that the Amendment is justified and worthy of consideration; however, even 
if the proposed Amendment is justified at this stage, this is not an endorsement of the 
eventual approval of the Amendment in whole or in part. As identified in Part 1.2.1 of 
the NEP, the justification for a proposed amendment to the NEP means that there is a 
sound and defensible rationale for the amendment, as well as reasons, arguments, or 
evidence in support of the change to the Plan, proposed through the amendment. 

NEP Section 1.2.1 Plan Amendments provides that the Plan may be amended if: 
 

• the Purpose and Objectives of the NEPDA and the NEP are met; 
• justification for the amendment is provided; and, 
• it can be demonstrated that the proposed amendment and the expected impacts 

resulting from the proposed amendment do not adversely affect the Purpose and 
Objectives of the NEPDA. 

 
The justification for supporting the initial consideration and processing of this 
amendment for a) the addition of a Permitted Use to Part 1.3.3 Escarpment Natural 
Area, b) a revision to the NEP Escarpment Protection Area Part 1.4.3.2 permitted Use 
respecting OFDUs and ARUs, and c) the inclusion of additional policies in Part 2.7 
Development Affecting Natural Heritage, is as follows: 

1. The amendment, as proposed, does not conflict with the Purpose and Objectives 
of the NEPDA and NEP, and in general, would be supportive of the compatible 
management of land and resources within the NEP. 

2. The amendment, as proposed, would not be contrary to the Objectives and 
Permitted Uses of the applicable Land Use Designations of the NEP. 



23  

3. The existing Development Criteria of the NEP further support the amendment as 
proposed, specifically concerning the policies related to promoting and protecting 
Agriculture. 

4. The amendment is consistent with the PPS which sets out policies for prime 
agricultural areas which are intended to protect these areas for long-term use for 
agriculture and includes policies that support a diversified rural economy and 
promote the protection of agricultural and other resource-related uses on rural 
lands. 

5. The amendment is consistent with the Greenbelt Plan (Protected Countryside), 
Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation Plan, and Growth Plan, in supporting 
agriculture while protecting Key Natural Heritage Features. 

6. The amendment policies are structured to reflect the unique/specialized purpose 
and program of the NEP. 

 
Niagara Escarpment Plan 

 
NEP Part 1.2.1 identifies that planning policies and land use designations may be 
changed by amendment to the Plan, provided that the proposed amendment is 
consistent with the Purpose and Objectives of the NEPDA and the NEP. The 
Development Criteria set out in Part 2 of the NEP are to be considered in the 
assessment of any amendment to the NEP. 

 
Land Use Designation and Designation Criteria 

 
1. Is the Amendment consistent with the Objectives of the Designation and the 

Designation Criteria in the NEP? 
 

The amendment proposes policies that would apply to the Escarpment Natural Area, 
Escarpment Protection Area, and Escarpment Rural Area land use designations. 
Discussion on how the proposals are consistent with the designation objectives and 
criteria is as follows: 

 
Escarpment Natural Area 

 
The Escarpment Natural Area includes Escarpment features that are in a relatively 
natural state and associated valleylands, wetlands, and woodlands that are relatively 
undisturbed. These areas contain natural features that provide essential ecosystem 
services. They are the most sensitive natural and scenic resources of the Escarpment. 
The policies aim to protect and enhance these natural areas. 

 
The Objectives of the Escarpment Natural Area are to recognize, protect, and where 
possible enhance the natural heritage and hydrological systems associated with the 



24  

NEP Area, to protect the most natural Escarpment features, valleylands, wetlands, and 
related significant natural areas, to conserve cultural heritage resources, including 
features and areas of interest to First Nations and Metis communities, to encourage 
compatible recreation, conservation, and educational activities; and, to maintain and 
enhance the scenic resources and open landscape character of the Escarpment. 

 
Agricultural lands have a role to play in providing buffers to Escarpment Natural Areas 
and ensuring that visually they are not compromised. Agriculture, as a land use, is not a 
significant part of lands designated Escarpment Natural Area; however, existing 
agricultural operations are permitted to continue within the designation. 

The amendment proposals continue to support the Objectives of the Escarpment Natural 
Area designation while supporting compatible agricultural uses. 

Escarpment Protection Area 
 

Escarpment Protection Areas are important due to their visual prominence, 
environmental significance, and their role as buffers to the prominent and sensitive 
Escarpment Natural Area features. They are often more visually prominent than 
Escarpment Natural Areas and include Escarpment-related landforms and natural 
heritage and hydrologic features that have been significantly modified by land use 
activities such as agriculture or residential development. 

 
The Objectives of the Escarpment Protection Area include to maintain and enhance the 
scenic resources and open landscape character of the Escarpment, to buffer the 
prominent Escarpment features, to recognize, protect, and where possible enhance the 
natural heritage system associated with the NEP Area and protect natural areas of 
regional significance, to conserve cultural heritage resources, including features and 
areas of interest to First Nation and Metis communities; and, to encourage compatible 
recreation, conservation, and forest management activities. 

 
Agriculture is a Permitted Use within the Escarpment Protection Area. Visually, the 
Escarpment Protection Areas are some of the most visually prominent within the NEP 
Area. Agricultural lands, both prime agricultural and rural areas may contribute to the 
open landscape character of the area. Providing a buffer to prominent Escarpment 
features is an Objective of this Designation, agriculture lands may provide such a buffer. 
Maintenance of agricultural lands is therefore a goal within the Escarpment Protection 
Area. 

The amendment proposals are found to support the Escarpment Protection Area 
designation. 



25  

Escarpment Rural Area 
 

Escarpment Rural Areas are an essential component of the Escarpment corridor, 
including portions of the Escarpment and lands in its vicinity. One objective is to 
encourage agriculture and protect agricultural lands and prime agricultural areas. 
Agriculture, agriculture-related uses, and on-farm diversified uses are permitted uses 
within the Escarpment Rural Area. This designation is the most likely to have the largest 
extent of active agricultural operations. Escarpment Rural Areas are also intended to 
provide a buffer to the more ecologically sensitive areas of the Escarpment. The 
objectives call for the maintenance of scenic values and open landscape character and 
encourage agriculture as a compatible land use to conserve the traditional cultural 
landscape. 

The proposed amendments are supportive of and consistent with the Escarpment Rural 
Area designation. 

Other NEP Land Use Designations 
 

The proposed policies have less material impact within the Urban, Minor Urban, and 
Recreation Areas of the NEP. In the case of Urban Areas, Minor Urban Centres and 
Escarpment Recreation Areas, the policy framework of the NEP requires that 
municipalities prepare official plans that are consistent with the NEP. If agricultural 
lands still exist in such areas, the municipality may introduce policies that are consistent 
with the NEP policies. The test will be whether they comply with the PPS (and the 
Protected Countryside of the Greenbelt Plan, should it apply). The municipality may or 
may not choose to introduce the provisions based on local planning concerns and 
municipalities may have policies that are more restrictive than the Provincial policies, to 
the extent of any conflict. 

Mineral Resource Extraction Areas would be largely unaffected by the policy proposals. 
Although agriculture, agriculture-related uses, and on-farm diversified uses are 
permitted uses in such areas, the expectation is that if the lands are under an active 
approved Aggregate Resource Act licence and NEC Development Permit, such areas 
will be or have been mined. Post-extraction rehabilitation is expected to include 
redesignation under the NEP and may return to agricultural uses, at which time the 
respective NEP policies may apply if introduced into the NEP. 

2.  Is the Amendment consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS), 
Greenbelt Plan, Places to Grow, and local planning documents? 

A discussion has been provided earlier in this report (Section B), concerning the planning 
framework that the proposal is required to be assessed against, and the consistency of 
the proposal with the PPS (2020), Growth Plan, local Official Plans, and the other 



26  

provincial plans. Circulation of the proposal to the affected ministries, municipalities, and 
conservation authorities will allow for further evaluation of the proposal against the 
applicable provincial and municipal planning policies and other guidelines. 

As noted previously, provincial plans take precedence over the PPS to the extent of any 
conflict. The specific regulatory and policy regime in the NEPDA and NEP has a unique 
purpose that may sometimes supersede broad-based provincial agricultural policies and 
guidelines. 

F. CONCLUSIONS 
 

Staff advises that should the Commission endorse proceeding with the processing of the 
amendment proposal at this time (i.e., circulation and request for comments), doing so does 
not represent an endorsement of the eventual approval of the amendment application in 
whole or in part. Staff will consider any comments received through the circulation of the 
proposal and return to the Commission with a comprehensive policy analysis and final 
recommendations. 

Concerning further consideration of the public interest, public agencies and special interest 
stakeholders may bring additional insight on matters related to the public interest and the 
Public Interest Advisory Committee (PIAC) would also convene to provide advice and 
recommendation on the proposal. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the Niagara Escarpment Commission instructs staff to process the proposed 
Amendment PC 225 22 for circulation and notification pursuant to Section 6.1(2) of the 
Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act. 

 
 

Attachments 
 

Appendix 1 Proposed Amendment Document  
 

Prepared By: Approved by: 
 

Lisa Grbinicek, RPP, MCIP Kathy Woeller 
Senior Strategic Advisor Director 



27  

Niagara Escarpment Commission 
 

232 Guelph St. 
Georgetown, ON L7G 4B1 
Tel: 905-877-5191 
www.escarpment.org 

 
 
 

November 16, 2022 

Commission de l’escarpement du Niagara 
 

232, rue Guelph 
Georgetown ON L7G 4B1 
No de tel. 905-877-5191 
www.escarpment.org 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
AMENDMENT DOCUMENT 

 
 
 

RE: NIAGARA ESCARPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT PC 225 22 
 Agricultural Policies Amendment  

 

Recommendation: 
 

That the Niagara Escarpment Commission initiate the attached proposed amendment 
pursuant to S. 6.1(2) of the Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act. 

 
 

Prepared by: 
 

 
Lisa Grbinicek, RPP, MCIP 
Senior Strategic Advisor 

 
 

Approved by: 
 
 

 
Kathy Woeller 
Director 

http://www.escarpment.org/
http://www.escarpment.org/


28  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Amendment PC 225 22 
to the Niagara Escarpment Plan 

 
Amendment to the policies respecting on-farm diversified 

uses and agricultural-related uses in the Escarpment 
Protection Area and other agricultural-related housekeeping 

matters 
 
 
 

November 16, 2022 



1  

Table of Contents 
 
 

Part A – The Preamble 

Part B – The Amendment 

  



2  

PART A – The Preamble 

Purpose: 

To undertake a general amendment to the Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP) to revise 
specific policies respecting agricultural uses, on-farm diversified uses, and agriculture- 
related uses to better support and enhance the Agricultural System and the long-term 
economic prosperity and viability of the agri-food sector, while ensuring that the Purpose 
and Objectives of the NEP are upheld. 

 
Area: 

 
The entire Niagara Escarpment Plan Area 

 
Initiator: 

 
Niagara Escarpment Commission (NEC) 

 
Basis: 

 
Under Section 6.1(2) of the Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act 
(NEPDA), the NEC may initiate an amendment to the NEP, provided that the NEC is 
satisfied that the amendment is justified. 

This proposed amendment is the result of monitoring five years of implementation of the 
2017 NEP agricultural policies and considering submissions from key agricultural 
stakeholders and individual landowners. The proposed amendment will strengthen and 
provide greater clarity and consistency to the current policies respecting agricultural 
development in the NEP Area. 

The revisions to existing policies and the introduction of new policies related to 
agricultural uses, on-farm diversified uses, and agricultural-related uses proposed to be 
introduced in the NEP through the amendment are found to be consistent with the 
Purpose and Objectives of the NEPDA and the NEP, and further, recognize that 
agricultural uses have the potential to be compatible land uses that can contribute to 
maintaining the Escarpment’s open landscape character and cultural heritage 
landscape. 

 
The proposed amendment also respects other provincial legislation including the 
Greenbelt Plan and Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation Plan as well as the Provincial 
Policy Statement. The amendment will ensure a consistent and coordinated approach to 
agricultural uses and agricultural development through the various provincial plans and 
legislation. 

  



3  

Part B – The Amendment 
 

Part 1 Land Use Policies is amended by adding the following Permitted Use under 
Part 1.3.3 Permitted Uses of the Escarpment Natural Area designation: 

15. Maple sugar harvesting (for greater certainty, this includes the tapping of trees, and 
collection of sap, and does not include the development of buildings or facilities 
related to maple syrup production). 

Part 1 Land Use Policies Permitted Use Part 1.4.3 Escarpment Protection Area, 
Permitted Use 3 is amended as follows: 

3. Agriculture-related uses and on-farm diversified uses., in prime agricultural areas 
 

Part 2.7 Development Affecting Natural Heritage is amended by adding a new 
subsection 2.7.2 which shall read: 

2.7.2 f) Expansions to Existing uses that are Agricultural uses, agricultural-related uses 
and on-farm diversified uses outside of wetlands, provided there is no alternative 
and the expansion or alteration in the feature is minimized and where possible, 
temporary. 

Part 2.7 Development Affecting Natural Heritage is amended by adding a new 
sub-section as follows: 

Notwithstanding Part 2.7.2, Agricultural uses, agricultural-related uses, and on-farm 
diversified uses may be permitted in Earth Science Areas of Natural and Scientific 
Interest, which is not also identified as any other Key Natural Heritage Feature, provided 
it has been demonstrated that the earth science values can be maintained and 
protected. Planning, design, and construction practices shall be identified that will keep 
disturbance to landform character to a minimum and ensure the protection of the 
geological or geomorphological attributes. 

The following definition is added to Appendix 2 Definitions: 
 

Earth Science Values: values that relate to the geological, soil, and landform features 
of the environment 

 



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023INFO #2

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023INFO #3

kchessell
Typewritten Text





kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023INFO #4

kchessell
Typewritten Text





kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023INFO #5

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text







1

Denise Holmes

From: Shari Page <spage@tritoneng.on.ca>
Sent: Monday, March 6, 2023 1:14 PM
To: Denise Holmes
Subject: TOWNSHIP OF SOUTHGATE, NOTICE OF PIC NO. 2 - Class EA, Schedule C, DUNDALK WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT CAPACITY
Attachments: Melancthon (D.Holmes) - Notice of PIC No. 2 Dundalk WWT Capacity.pdf

Good afternoon, 
 
On behalf of the Township of Southgate, please find attached, Notice of Virtual Public Information Centre 
(PIC) No. 2, Class Environmental Assessment, Schedule C for the Township of Southgate, Dundalk 
Wastewater Treatment Capacity.    
 
This Notice will publicly appear in the next two (2) consecutive editions of The Dundalk Herald, March 8th and 
March 15th, 2023.   
 
Should you have any questions, concerns or require further clarification, please refer to the attached notice for 
the appropriate contacts and information. 
 
Kind regards, 
Shari 
 
 

Shari Page 
 

Triton Engineering Services Limited 
105 Queen Street West, Unit 14  Fergus, ON  N1M 1S6 
Tel - (519) 843-3920 Ext 220 • Fax - (519) 843-1943 • www.tritoneng.on.ca 
  

This email message and any files transmitted with it are proprietary and confidential information of the sender and are intended only for the person(s) to 
whom this email is addressed.  If you have received this email message in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone or email and destroy 

the original message without making a copy 
 

 

From: Shari Page  
Sent: Wednesday, November 2, 2022 12:05 PM 
To: 'dholmes@melancthontownship.ca' <dholmes@melancthontownship.ca> 
Subject: TOWNSHIP OF SOUTHGATE, NOTICE OF PUBLIC INFORMATION CENTRE ‐ Class EA, Schedule C, DUNDALK 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT CAPACITY 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
On behalf of the Township of Southgate, please find attached, ‘Notice of Virtual and Drop-In Public Information 
Centre, Class Environmental Assessment, Schedule C for the Township of Southgate, Dundalk Wastewater 
Treatment Capacity.    
 
This Notice will also appear in the next two (2) consecutive editions of The Dundalk Herald, November 2nd and 
November 9th, 2022.   
 
Should you have any questions or require further clarification, please refer to the attached notice for the 
appropriate contacts. 

kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023INFO #6

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



2

 
Kind regards, 
Shari 
 
 

Shari Page 
 

Triton Engineering Services Limited 
105 Queen Street West, Unit 14  Fergus, ON  N1M 1S6 
Tel - (519) 843-3920 ext.258 • Cell - (519) 616-0513 • Fax - (519) 843-1943 • www.tritoneng.on.ca 
  

This email message and any files transmitted with it are proprietary and confidential information of the sender and are intended only for the person(s) to 
whom this email is addressed.  If you have received this email message in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone or email and destroy 

the original message without making a copy 
 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

105 Queen Street West, Unit 14 
 Fergus 
 Ontario N1M 1S6 
 Tel: (519) 843-3920 
 Fax: (519) 843-1943 
 Email: info@tritoneng.on.ca  

 ORANGEVILLE ● FERGUS ● HARRISTON 
 
  March 3, 2023 

 
Township of Melancthon 
157101 Highway 10 
MELANCTHON, Ontario 
L9V 2E6 
 
ATTENTION:  Denise B. Holmes 
   CAO/Clerk 
   dholmes@melancthontownship.ca 
 
      RE: Township of Southgate 

     Dundalk Wastewater Treatment Facility  
    Class Environmental Assessment Schedule C 
    Notice of Public Information Centre (PIC) No. 2 
    Our File: W4609A 
Dear Ms. Holmes, 
 
You are invited to the second Public Information Centre (PIC) that will be held virtually for the above 
noted project to provide an update regarding the Dundalk Wastewater Treatment Facility, Class 
Environmental Assessment (Class EA).  Formal notice of this information centre has been included.  
Details for the invite are as follows: 
 

March 15th – 24th, 2023 
Virtually (online) 

Township of Southgate’s website  
https://www.southgate.ca/en/municipal-services/planning-applications-public-notices.aspx 

 
Project Background 
The Township of Southgate has identified treatment capacity limitations with its wastewater treatment 
facility (WWTF) located in the community of Dundalk. In order to increase capacity and improve 
performance, the Township is pursuing an expansion to the WWTF utilizing the preferred alternative 
strategy identified as part of the evaluation process. The proposed works will provide a reliable, cost-
effective sewage collection and treatment strategy, which will allow for continued growth and 
development in the community. 
 
The Township of Southgate has commenced with a Schedule C Class Environmental Assessment 
(Class EA) under Ontario’s Municipal Class Environmental Assessment (October 2000 as amended 
in 2007, 2011, 2015). This review has evaluated the existing WWTF, and alternative solutions to 
address the wastewater treatment capacity.  Based on this, options concerning the reduction of inflow 
to the system, implementation of water conversation measures, expansion and optimization of the 
existing facility, and construction of a mechanical facility have been considered and evaluated, leading 
to the selection of a preferred collection and treatment strategy.   A general location plan of the property 
is contained on the attached Notice of Public Information Centre for your reference. 
 
 

mailto:dholmes@melancthontownship.ca
https://www.southgate.ca/en/municipal-services/planning-applications-public-notices.aspx


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The Problem Statement for this project is as follows:  
 

“The Township of Southgate is committed to delivering responsive and cost-effective municipal 
services that provide for the economic, social and environmental well-being of its ratepayers now and 
in the future.  Proposed growth in the Dundalk urban centre will result in the allocation of the remaining 
reserve capacity of the Dundalk wastewater treatment facility to residential development. As a result, 
further commitment toward growth and infilling cannot be realized until additional wastewater capacity 
is made available. The objective of this Class Environmental Assessment is to consider cost effective 
sewage collection and treatment alternatives for the Dundalk urban centre that will minimize 
environmental impacts and provide additional wastewater treatment capacity.” 
 
Purpose of Public Consultation 
The purpose of this virtual Public Information Centre is to update all stakeholders, approval agencies, 
and Indigenous communities on the progress of the project, present the preferred solutions, and invite 
you to provide your comments and feedback on a preferred alternative.  From March 15th to March 
24th, 2023, you will be able to view a display of background information and materials regarding the 
project on the Township’s website noted. 
 
We look forward to receiving your comments and should you have any questions regarding this public 
consultation, please contact the undersigned.  In your response, please confirm your preferred method 
for receiving future correspondence as it relates to this project. 

 

        Respectfully,  
 
        Triton Engineering Services Limited  

                                                              
        Dustin C. Lyttle, P. Eng. 
        Project Manager 
 
Encl. Notice of Public Information Centre (PIC) No. 2 
cc:    Jim Ellis, Township of Southgate 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

Township of Southgate 

Class Environmental Assessment 

Dundalk Wastewater Treatment Capacity 

Notice of Virtual Public Information Centre No. 2 

 
Project Background: 
The Township of Southgate has identified treatment capacity limitations with its wastewater treatment facility 
(WWTF) located in the community of Dundalk. In order to increase capacity and improve performance, the 
Township is pursuing an expansion to the WWTF utilizing the preferred alternative strategy identified earlier. 
The proposed works will provide a reliable, cost-effective sewage collection and treatment strategy, which will 
allow for continued growth and development in the community. 
 
The Study Process: 
The Township initiated a Class Environmental Assessment (Class EA) in order to evaluate alternative 
solutions to address the wastewater treatment capacity concerns and to establish a preferred alternative. The 
project is being planned under Schedule C of the Municipal Class Environmental Assessment (October 2000, 
as amended in 2007, 2011, 2015).   
 

 
 
Public Information Centre (PIC) No. 2: 
Consultation with the public, key stakeholders, Indigenous groups and regulatory agencies is an important 
component of the Class EA Process.  The purpose of this PIC is to solicit feedback and input on the Study, 
as well as provide an overview of the Study process and discuss the evaluation of the preferred alternative.  
The Virtual Public Open House will provide background information inviting public input and will be open for 
comments from March 15th to March 24th 2023. The virtual consultation platform can be accessed online 
through the Township’s website at https://www.southgate.ca/en/municipal-services/planning-applications-
public-notices.aspx  
 
How to Respond: 
If you have any questions, comments, require further information, and/or would like to be added to the project 
contact list, please contact both of the following:  
 
Jim Ellis, CRS S, Dipl. M.M 
Public Works Manager 
Township of Southgate 
185667 Grey County Road 9 
RR#1 Dundalk, ON 
NOC 1B0 
Phone: 519-923-2100 x250 
Fax: 519-923-9262 

Email: jellis@southgate.ca 
 

Dustin Lyttle, P.Eng 
Project Manager  
Triton Engineering Services Limited 
105 Queen Street, Unit 14 
Fergus, ON 
N1M 1S6 
Phone: 519-843-3920 x222 
Fax: 519-843-1943 
Email: dlyttle@tritoneng.on.ca  

Information collected will be used in accordance with the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act.  With the exception of personal information, all comments will become part of the public record. This 
notice first issued publicly on March 8th, 2023. 

Site Location 

https://www.southgate.ca/en/municipal-services/planning-applications-public-notices.aspx
https://www.southgate.ca/en/municipal-services/planning-applications-public-notices.aspx
mailto:jellis@southgate.ca
mailto:dlyttle@tritoneng.on.ca


kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023INFO #7

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text





kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023ACT #1

kchessell
Typewritten Text







kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023ACT #2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text







kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023ACT #3

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023ACT #4

kchessell
Typewritten Text





kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023ACT #5

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text









kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023GB #16.1.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text







 THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 
 
 BY-LAW NUMBER       -2023 
 
 
BEING A BY-LAW TO ADOPT THE ESTIMATES OF ALL SUMS REQUIRED DURING THE 
YEAR AND TO STRIKE THE RATES OF TAXATION, AND TO FURTHER PROVIDE FOR 
PENALTY AND INTEREST IN DEFAULT OF PAYMENT THEREOF FOR THE YEAR 2023 

 
WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon has, in accordance with the 
Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25 as amended, Section 290 (1)(2)(3)(4) and Section 291 (1) 
considered the estimates of the Municipality for the year 2023; 
 
AND WHEREAS pursuant to the County of Dufferin By-law the County of Dufferin set tax ratios and 
to set tax rate reductions for prescribed property subclasses for county purposes and lower tier municipal 
purposes; 
 
AND WHEREAS the tax ratios established the relative amount of taxation to be borne by each property 
class and have been set for the taxation year 2023 under the authority of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 
2001, Chapter 25 Section 308(5) as follows: 
 

Residential Class is    1.0000 
Multi-residential Class is   2.0000 
New Multi-Residential   1.1000 
Commercial Class is   1.2200 
Industrial Class is   2.1984 
Landfill Class is   1.1815 
Pipeline Class is   0.8421 
Farmland Class is   0.2200 
Managed Forest Class is   0.2500 

 
 
AND WHEREAS all property assessment rolls on which the 2023 taxes are to be levied have been 
returned and revised pursuant to the provision of the Assessment Act, R.S.O. 1990, c.A.31, as amended 
(hereinafter referred to as the Assessment Act ) subject to appeals at present before the Assessment 
Review Board, the Ontario Municipal Board and the District Court; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Residential/Farm Assessment , Multi-Residential Assessment , Commercial 
Assessment , Industrial Assessment , Pipeline Assessment , Farmlands Assessment  and Managed 
Forests Assessment  and the applicable subclasses pursuant to Section 7 of the Assessment Act, as 
amended by the Fair Municipal Finance Act, 1997 and Regulations thereto, have been determined on the 
basis of the aforementioned property assessment rolls and are detailed on Schedule A  attached hereto 
and which forms part hereof; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Province of Ontario has regulated all education tax rates for 2023; and hereby 
adopted to be applied against the whole of the assessment for real property. 
 
AND WHEREAS the Treasurer shall add all or any arrears for special charges such as developer 
charges; fees regarding registered tax properties; service charges for cutting weeds, dog licensing fees 
and drain maintenance arrears pursuant to any statute or by-law to the respective properties chargeable 
thereto and that the same shall be collected by the collector in the manner as all other rates or levies.  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon enacts as follows: 
 
THAT the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon adopt the sum of Three Million, and 
Ninety-Four Thousand, Four Hundred and Thirty-Three Dollars ($3,094,433.00) as detailed in 
Schedule B  attached hereto and which forms part hereof as the estimate of the Property Tax Levy 
required during the year 2023 for general purposes of the Corporation of the Township of 
Melancthon. 

 
THAT for the year 2023 in the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon, the lower tier 
municipalities shall levy upon Residential/Farm Assessment, Multi-Residential Assessment, 
Commercial Assessment, Industrial Assessment, Pipeline Assessment, Farmlands Assessment and 

kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023GB #16.1.2

kchessell
Typewritten Text



Managed Forests Assessment and applicable subclasses the tax rates for Township purposes set out in 
Schedule C  attached hereto and which forms part hereof. 

 
THAT tax rates for the Township of Melancthon portion of the tax bill are hereby adopted to be 
applied against the whole of the assessment for real property as set out in Schedule D . 

 
 
1. The taxes shall become due and payable in two instalments: 
 

First installment due and payable on August 22, 2023 
Second installment due and payable on November 21, 2023 

 
2. A penalty at the rate of 1.25% will be charged on the first day of default and on the first day  

of each calendar month thereafter in which default continues, on all unpaid instalments of  
taxes until December 31, 2023 after which the interest rates of 1.25% per month for each  

 month or fraction thereof will be added. 
 
3. The Treasurer may mail or cause the same to be mailed to the resident or place of business 
 of such person indicated on the last revised assessment roll, a written or printed notice 
 specifying the amount of taxes payable.  
 
4. The taxes are payable at the Municipal Office, 157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, 

L9V 2E6, the Toronto Dominion Bank or Credit Union in Shelburne, the CIBC or Credit 
Union in Dundalk, by mail, or by telephone/internet banking and by direct debit but not 
credit card. 

 
5. In the event that the Provincial OPTA system does not have the necessary data to provide 

on Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Residential tax capping to permit processing tax bills 
for these installment dates, then the Treasurer is authorized to process tax bills for the 
remaining tax classes and to establish later tax installment due date(s) for the Commercial, 
Industrial and Multi-Residential tax classes on a separate bill. 

 
 
 
This by-law shall come into force and effect upon the date of the final reading thereof. 
 
 
By-law read a first and second time this 16th      day of March, 2023. 
 
 
By-law read a third time and passed this 16th    day of March, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________    _________________________________ 
Mayor                 Clerk 
 



"Pure" Assessment Tax Ratio Weighted

Assessment

Residential 444,373,100 1.0000 444,373,100 RT

Residential Payment in Lieu 0 1.0000 0 RH

Commercial  Full (Occupied) 10,363,500 1.2200 12,643,470 CT

Commercial Vacant Land 393,200 1.2115 476,346 CU

Commercial Excess Land 68,000 1.2115 82,379 CX

Commercial New Const. - Full 0 1.2200 0

Commercial New Const. Vacant 0 1.2115 0

Shopping Centre  (Occupied) 0 1.2200 0

Parking Lot Full 0 1.2200 0

Industrial  (Occupied) 40,674,100 2.1984 89,417,941 IT

Vacant Units & Excess Land 141,000 2.1830 307,805 IX

Industrial PIL shared 117,000 2.1984 257,213 IH

New Construction Excess Land 0 1.5389 0

Residential  - Payment in Lieu 0 1.0000 0

Pipeline 1,942,000 0.8421 1,635,358 PT

Farmlands 249,747,300 0.2200 54,944,406 FT

Managed Forest 2,770,000 0.2500 692,500 TT

Total 750,589,200 604,830,518

Weighted Assessments Calculation

CALCULATION OF LOWER TIER TAX RATES

Township of Melancthon

Schedule A



1

2022 2022 2023
BUDGET DEPARTMENT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

PAGE EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023

GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES
4 COUNCIL 112,350.00$             102,998.33$              117,540.00$           
5 ADMINISTRATION 650,504.00$             613,370.31$              696,192.00$           
5 TAXATION WRITE OFFS 75,000.00$               21,669.54$                35,000.00$             

837,854.00$           738,038.18$            848,732.00$        

PROTECTION TO PERSONAL & PROPERTY
6 FIRE SERVICES 281,679.99$             284,745.50$              364,169.00$           
6 POLICING 432,024.00$             426,036.85$              447,718.00$           
6 BYLAW ENFORCEMENT 12,000.00$               8,628.15$                  12,000.00$             
6 CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 33,615.80$               33,609.80$                34,800.00$             
6 ANIMAL CONTROL 3,500.00$                 8,836.82$                  11,200.00$             
6 STREET LIGHTS 6,500.00$                 5,178.88$                  6,000.00$              

769,319.79$           767,036.00$            875,887.00$        

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
7 SALARIES & ADMINISTRATION 551,100.00$             509,685.23$              566,820.00$           
7 ROAD DEPARTMENT BUILDING & MISC. 145,500.00$             159,919.82$              189,300.00$           
8 ROAD EQUIPMENT 266,780.00$             306,124.37$              320,000.00$           
8 NEW EQUIPMENT 803,349.13$             144,793.00$              822,000.00$           
9 BRIDGES, CULVERTS, DRAINS 458,408.00$             367,010.52$              173,907.00$           
9 ROADSIDE 65,000.00$               14,635.98$                45,175.00$             
9 HARDTOP 51,700.00$               21,884.48$                48,500.00$             
9 LOOSETOP 527,000.00$             500,521.44$              602,000.00$           
10 WINTER CONTROL 41,225.00$               49,788.80$                55,000.00$             
10 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 350,000.00$             503,304.74$              900,000.00$           
10 RESERVES 160,000.00$             150,000.00$              150,000.00$           
10 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 119,568.00$             129,690.70$              -$                      

3,539,630.13$       2,857,359.08$         3,872,702.00$     

     TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 2023 DRAFT BUDGET



2

2022 2022 2023
BUDGET DEPARTMENT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
PAGE EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023

11 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 38,600.00$               25,833.86$                33,918.00$             
38,600.00$             25,833.86$              33,918.00$           

11 RECREATION 176,808.00$             173,403.68$              158,273.00$           
176,808.00$           173,403.68$            158,273.00$        

11 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES (CEMETERY) 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$              
5,000.00$               5,000.00$                5,000.00$             

11 LIBRARY 67,100.00$               67,443.00$                70,915.00$             
67,100.00$             67,443.00$              70,915.00$           

12 PLANNING 80,000.00$               70,802.78$                150,000.00$           
80,000.00$             70,802.78$              150,000.00$        

12 DRAINAGE 55,380.00$               26,603.38$                55,000.00$             
55,380.00$             26,603.38$              55,000.00$           

12 RESERVES 33,000.00$               33,000.00$                -$                      
33,000.00$             33,000.00$              -$                      

12 SUBTOTAL EXPENSES 5,602,691.92$       4,764,519.96$         6,070,427.00$     



3

2022 2022 2023
BUDGET DEPARTMENT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

PAGE REVENUE SUMMARY AS AT MAR 2, 2023

13 TAXATION 
SUPPLEMENTALS 85,000.00$               83,072.57$                80,000.00$             
GRANT IN LIEU 1,900.00$                 1,946.42$                  1,950.00$              

86,900.00$             85,018.99$              81,950.00$           

13 GRANTS 515,029.00$             518,713.98$              427,082.00$           
515,029.00$           518,713.98$            427,082.00$        

13 ADMINISTRATION 23,650.00$               27,569.00$                25,870.00$             
23,650.00$             27,569.00$              25,870.00$           

14 PROTECTIONS TO PERSONS & PROPERTY 4,100.00$                 5,119.00$                  5,000.00$              
4,100.00$               5,119.00$                5,000.00$             

14 ROADS 1,092,930.00$          809,640.00$              1,501,442.00$        
1,092,930.00$       809,640.00$            1,501,442.00$     

14 PLANNING 19,700.00$               24,750.00$                53,500.00$             
19,700.00$             24,750.00$              53,500.00$           

15 OTHER 945,550.00$             989,050.20$              876,150.00$           
945,550.00$           989,050.20$              876,150.00$           

15 SUBTOTAL  REVENUE 2,687,859.00$       2,459,861.17$         2,970,994.00$     



4

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # COUNCIL EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5001 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
1010 SALARIES, MEETINGS 92,000.00$               92,162.27$                96,140.00$             
1025 RECEIVER GENERAL 3,800.00$                 4,272.41$                  4,450.00$              
1030 EHT 1,600.00$                 1,797.24$                  1,850.00$              
1070 MILEAGE 1,000.00$                 50.50$                      1,000.00$              
1080 CONFERENCES/CONVENTIONS/SEMINARS/TRAINING 7,750.00$                 1,866.34$                  7,500.00$              
1090 MEALS 200.00$                   -$                         600.00$                 
2190 MISCELLANEOUS/HYBRID COUNCIL 6,000.00$                 2,849.57$                  6,000.00$              

TOTAL COUNCIL EXPENDITURES 112,350.00$           102,998.33$            117,540.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5002 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
1010 WAGES, VACATION PAY, UNUSED SICK PAY 309,000.00$             306,111.35$              320,360.00$           
1020 BENEFITS 32,000.00$               26,746.21$                32,000.00$             
1022 TRAINING 3,000.00$                 1,134.63$                  1,500.00$              
1025 RECEIVER GENERAL 18,000.00$               15,940.97$                18,720.00$             
1026 MEETINGS 1,000.00$                 441.80$                    1,000.00$              
1030 EHT 6,000.00$                 6,001.31$                  6,240.00$              
1040 WSIB 8,500.00$                 7,938.78$                  8,840.00$              
1064 OMERS TOWNSHIP 33,000.00$               31,209.82$                34,300.00$             
1070 MILEAGE 1,500.00$                 388.50$                    1,500.00$              
1080 CONFERENCES -$                        -$                         4,000.00$              
2025 OFFICE FURNITURE 1,000.00$                 183.16$                    1,200.00$              
2010 OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,800.00$                 5,592.23$                  6,800.00$              
2020 POSTAGE 7,000.00$                 6,538.02$                  7,000.00$              
2030 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 3,500.00$                 4,483.72$                  4,500.00$              
2035 COMPUTER PROGRAM UPDATES & IT SERVICES 16,000.00$               15,447.44$                23,500.00$             
2036 COMPUTERS & SERVER 500.00$                   -$                         500.00$                 
2037 ESRI LICENSE AGREEMENT 3,100.00$                 3,052.80$                  3,100.00$              
2040 ADVERTISING 1,500.00$                 1,545.73$                  1,500.00$              
2050 AUDIT 21,000.00$               23,733.44$                24,000.00$             
2060 MEMBERSHIPS 4,100.00$                 4,656.24$                  4,000.00$              
2070 HEATING 3,400.00$                 2,984.83$                  3,400.00$              
2080 HYDRO 4,800.00$                 5,012.01$                  5,300.00$              
2090 TELEPHONE 2,800.00$                 2,253.85$                  2,500.00$              
2094 INTERNET 1,800.00$                 1,692.80$                  1,800.00$              
2095 WEBSITE MAINTENANCE -$                        929.57$                    500.00$                 



5

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5002 EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED) AS AT MAR 2, 2023
STRATEGIC PLAN -$                        30,000.00$             

2100 PROFESSIONAL FEES - LEGAL 25,000.00$               19,302.95$                25,000.00$             
2102 INTEGRITY COMMISSIONER SERVICES 5,000.00$                 6,754.51$                  3,000.00$              
2103 HEALTH AND SAFETY SERVICES 5,000.00$                 4,674.98$                  4,700.00$              
2109 EMPLOYEE TOWNSHIP COMPENSATION PLAN -$                        15,000.00$             
2110 INSURANCE 55,000.00$               47,424.13$                52,000.00$             
2120 ELECTION 15,000.00$               16,678.10$                -$                      
2162 BLDG MAINTENANCE 4,000.00$                 1,694.79$                  8,000.00$              
2163 OFFICE CLEANING 2,400.00$                 $1,628.16 2,400.00$              
2164 LANDSCAPING & GRASS CUTTING 300.00$                   -$                         300.00$                 
2165 WATER SAMPLING 125.00$                   100.84$                    125.00$                 
2170 COVID-19 EXPENSES 5,000.00$                 1,619.22$                  -$                      
2190 OTHER/MISCELLANEOUS 5,000.00$                 1,708.79$                  4,000.00$              
2200 PETTY CASH 500.00$                   20.00$                      500.00$                 
4030 BANK CHARGES 1,300.00$                 937.97$                    1,300.00$              
6135 GRANT TO OTHERS 2,500.00$                 3,750.00$                  3,750.00$              
6133 DONATION TO MARKDALE HOSPITAL (5YRS) 15,000.00$               15,000.00$                10,000.00$             
6136 ERSKINE CLINIC 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$              
7011 LOAN FOR MUNICIPAL EXPANSION 13,057.00$               13,056.66$                13,057.00$             

TOTAL 650,504.00$           613,370.31$            696,192.00$        

4010 TOTAL TAX WRITE OFF EXPENDITURES 75,000.00$             21,669.54$              35,000.00$           

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES 837,854.00$           738,038.18$            848,732.00$        



6

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # PROTECTION TO PERSONS/PROPERTY BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
FIRE SERVICES

3 6010 MULMUR MELANCTHON FD 103,689.86$             106,755.37$              127,070.00$           
3 6020 SHELBURNE AND DISTRICT FD 112,990.13$             112,990.13$              167,099.00$           
3 6030 TOWNSHIP OF SOUTHGATE FD - OPER/CAP 65,000.00$               65,000.00$                70,000.00$             

SUB TOTAL 281,679.99$           284,745.50$            364,169.00$        

POLICING
4 3050 POLICING 419,774.00$             419,266.19$              435,468.00$           
4 3055 POLICING - ESO 350.00$                   246.66$                    350.00$                 
4 3052 POLICING - RIDE 6,600.00$                 6,524.00$                  6,600.00$              
4 3053 POLICE SERVICES BOARD 300.00$                   -$                         300.00$                 
4 2310 TASK FORCE 5,000.00$                 5,036.10$                  5,000.00$              

SUB TOTAL 432,024.00$           426,036.85$            447,718.00$        

BY LAW ENFORCEMENT
4 6155 BY LAW ENFORCEMENT 12,000.00$             8,628.15$                12,000.00$           

CONSERVATION AREA
4 6040 NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CA 13,228.80$               13,222.80$                13,745.00$             
4 6050 GRAND RIVER CA 20,387.00$               20,387.00$                21,055.00$             

SUB TOTAL 33,615.80$             33,609.80$              34,800.00$           

ANIMAL CONTROL
13 6140 LIVESTOCK CLAIMS 1,000.00$                 3,935.75$                  4,000.00$              
4 6150 ANIMAL CONTROL 2,500.00$                 4,901.07$                  7,200.00$              

SUB TOTAL 3,500.00$               8,836.82$                11,200.00$           

STREET LIGHTS
6 3025 STREET LIGHTS LED 5,500.00$                 5,178.88$                  5,000.00$              
6 3026 STREET LIGHT REPAIR 1,000.00$                 -$                         1,000.00$              

SUB TOTAL 6,500.00$               5,178.88$                6,000.00$             

TOTAL PROTECTION TO PERSONS/PROPERTY 769,319.79$           767,036.00$            875,887.00$        



7

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023

SALARIES & ADMINISTRATION
1010 SALARIES AND WAGES 405,000.00$             382,530.18$              421,200.00$           
1025 RECEIVER GENERAL, EHT & WSIB 44,000.00$               43,236.95$                45,760.00$             
1020 BENEFITS 31,000.00$               24,256.40$                28,000.00$             
1065 OMERS TOWNSHIP CONTRIBUTION 36,500.00$               33,450.18$                37,960.00$             
1070 MILEAGE 100.00$                   12.00$                      100.00$                 
1022 STAFF TRAINING AND SEMINARS 3,000.00$                 213.70$                    4,000.00$              
2010 OFFICE SUPPLIES/COMPUTOR 2,000.00$                 1,711.85$                  2,000.00$              
2036 GPS MONTHLY TRACKING EXPENSE 5,500.00$                 4,308.66$                  5,500.00$              
2112 ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN SUPPORT 6,000.00$                 7,245.31$                  6,000.00$              
2112 ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 18,000.00$               12,720.00$                -$                      
3105 BRIDGE STUDY/INSPECTIONS -$                        16,300.00$             

TOTAL 551,100.00$           509,685.23$            566,820.00$        

ROAD DEPARTMENT BUILDING MISC.
2070 UTILITIES - HEAT 12,000.00$               15,166.91$                16,000.00$             
2080 UTILITIES - HYDRO 7,000.00$                 5,261.15$                  7,000.00$              
2090 TELEPHONE 1,000.00$                 1,102.48$                  1,200.00$              
2091 MOBILE PHONE 1,200.00$                 661.39$                    1,500.00$              
2040 ADVERTISING 750.00$                   529.15$                    750.00$                 
2041 SIGNS 5,000.00$                 4,565.66$                  6,000.00$              
2110 INSURANCE 57,400.00$               68,575.37$                70,000.00$             
2100 LEGAL FEES 5,000.00$                 18,132.31$                20,000.00$             
2050 AUDIT 10,000.00$               10,000.00$                10,000.00$             
2060 MEMBERSHIPS 150.00$                   131.00$                    150.00$                 
2165 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES/STOCK 7,000.00$                 6,761.09$                  7,000.00$              
2166 COVERALLS 6,000.00$                 4,860.70$                  6,000.00$              
3000 SERVICES AND RENTS/MISC 7,500.00$                 -$                         7,500.00$              
2103 HEALTH & SAFETY SERVICES 5,000.00$                 4,802.18$                  5,000.00$              
2104 HEALTH & SAFETY SERVICES/SUPPLIES 500.00$                   127.20$                    1,000.00$              
2162 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 10,000.00$               14,420.04$                20,000.00$             
2163 SAND DOME REPAIRS -$                         
2170 COVID EXPENSES -$                        121.49$                    -$                      
2185 OIL SEPARATER 2,000.00$                 2,031.34$                  2,200.00$              
2192 SHOP TOOLS 5,000.00$                 933.13$                    5,000.00$              
2190 MISCELLANEOUS 2,000.00$                 1,737.23$                  2,000.00$              
3800 CONTRACT WORK 1,000.00$                 -$                         1,000.00$              

TOTAL 145,500.00$           159,919.82$            189,300.00$        



8

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023

ROAD EQUIPMENT
2150 FUEL - CLEAR 55,000.00$               64,678.72$                70,000.00$             
2155 FUEL - DYED 40,000.00$               61,264.34$                65,000.00$             
3060 WATER TANK -$                        

3070/3072 FUEL - PATROL TRUCKS 18,000.00$               15,300.81$                18,000.00$             
2180 OIL - TRUCKS AND GRADER 4,000.00$                 4,498.07$                  5,000.00$              
3071 TR # 1 - REPAIRS 5,000.00$                 5,158.03$                  5,000.00$              
3073 TR # 2 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               13,706.75$                15,000.00$             
3074 TR # 3 - REPAIRS 10,000.00$               8,791.38$                  15,000.00$             
3075 TR # 4 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               12,501.44$                15,000.00$             
3076 TR # 5 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               18,740.57$                15,000.00$             
3077 TR # 6 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               19,835.58$                15,000.00$             
3069 TR # 7 - REPAIRS 5,000.00$                 128.59$                    5,000.00$              
3079 GR#1 - CAT - REPAIRS 10,000.00$               23,807.20$                15,000.00$             
3080 GR#2 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               5,238.51$                  15,000.00$             
3081 BACKHOE REPAIRS 3,000.00$                 1,842.92$                  3,000.00$              
3082 LOADER 2,500.00$                 402.03$                    2,500.00$              
3083 JOHN DEERE MOWER 1,000.00$                 438.25$                    1,000.00$              
3084 POWER WASHER 3,000.00$                 -$                         3,000.00$              
3085 CHAIN SAW 1,000.00$                 324.54$                    1,000.00$              
3086 ROADSIDE MOWER 1,000.00$                 1,205.51$                  2,000.00$              
3500 WINTER CONTROL-PLOW & WING PARTS 18,000.00$               34,885.00$                20,000.00$             
7015 JOHN DEERE GRADER LOAN 2,780.00$                 2,796.04$                  -$                      
2191 RADIO AND TRUCK LICENSES 10,000.00$               10,580.09$                12,000.00$             
2195 RADIO MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,500.00$                 -$                         2,500.00$              

TOTAL 266,780.00$           306,124.37$            320,000.00$        

NEW EQUIPMENT (CAPITAL)
7010 VEHICLES - TRUCK 128,349.13$             144,793.00$              -$                      
7005 EQUIPMENT (ACCUMULATOR) 15,000.00$               

GRADER 500,000.00$             610,000.00$           
TRUCK - 2 TONNE DUALLY PICK-UP 100,000.00$             100,000.00$           
PICK-UP EQUIPMENT 60,000.00$               60,000.00$             
TRACTOR WITH BLOWER BRUSHER (loan) 52,000.00$             
TOTAL 803,349.13$           144,793.00$            822,000.00$        



9

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023

BRIDGES, CULVERTS, DRAINS
3100 BRIDGE & CULVERT MTCE 20,000.00$               236.39$                    15,000.00$             

BRIDGE # 7 25,000.00$             
3111 BRIDGE # 11 304,500.00$             322,495.16$              -$                      
3115 BRIDGE # 13 -$                        3,371.45$                  -$                      
3116 BRIDGE  #004 - CLOSURE -$                        -$                         -$                      
3100 BRIDGE # 6 - CONTRUCTION - WATERPROOF/PAVE 20,000.00$               -$                         20,000.00$             
3112 BRIDGE # 2023 ENGINEERING DESIGN 18,000.00$               -$                         18,000.00$             
3850 DRAIN ASSESSMENTS NEW REPORTS -$                        -$                         -$                      
3851 ROAD CROSSINGS DUE TO DRAIN MTCE 55,000.00$               -$                         55,000.00$             
7021 CULVERT 2027 LOAN PAYMENT 40,908.00$               40,907.52$                40,907.00$             
3178 30 SIDEROAD CULVERT - EMERG. REPAIR -$                        -$                      
3156 CULVERT 2013 -$                        -$                      
3165 CULVERT 2021 -$                        -$                      

TOTAL 458,408.00$           367,010.52$            173,907.00$        

ROADSIDE
3215 GRASS MOWING & WEED SPRAYING 5,500.00$                 3,208.33$                  2,675.00$              
3205 BRUSHING - TREE TRIM AND REMOVAL 20,000.00$               4,261.20$                  -$                      
3206 DITCHING 30,000.00$               -$                         30,000.00$             
3322 CATCH BASINS 2,500.00$                 1,315.25$                  2,500.00$              
3610 GUIDE POSTS & HARDWARE 2,000.00$                 5,851.20$                  5,000.00$              
3315 SHOULDER MAINTENANCE 5,000.00$                 -$                         5,000.00$              

TOTAL 65,000.00$             14,635.98$              45,175.00$           

HARDTOP
3304 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 18,000.00$               12,146.64$                20,000.00$             
3310 COLD MIX, PATCHING, ROUTINE MTCE 25,200.00$               1,750.70$                  6,000.00$              
3320 SWEEPING, FLUSHING, CLEANING 5,500.00$                 4,959.78$                  5,500.00$              
3321 LINE PAINTING 3,000.00$                 3,027.36$                  17,000.00$             

TOTAL 51,700.00$             21,884.48$              48,500.00$           

LOOSETOP
3700 CLEARVIEW TOWNLINE -$                        
3750 TOWNLINES 1,000.00$                 223.88$                    1,000.00$              
3200 ROADSIDE MAINTENANCE 1,000.00$                 -$                         1,000.00$              
3210 GRAVEL RESURFACING 335,000.00$             341,224.01$              400,000.00$           
3211 GRAVEL MAINTENANCE 25,000.00$               12,109.04$                30,000.00$             
3410 DUST LAYER (CALCIUM CHLORIDE) 165,000.00$             146,964.51$              170,000.00$           

TOTAL 527,000.00$           500,521.44$            602,000.00$        



10

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023

WINTER CONTROL
3510 SAND & SALT 40,000.00$               46,251.18$                55,000.00$             
3505 SNOW REMOVAL/BLOWING 1,225.00$                 3,537.62$                  -$                      

TOTAL 41,225.00$             49,788.80$              55,000.00$           

ROAD IMPROVEMENT
3130 2ND LINE SW - REHABILITATION 350,000.00$             478,508.25$              -$                      
3137 7TH LINE SW - REHABILITATION -$                        150,000.00$           
3134 RIVERVIEW PAVING -$                        250,000.00$           
3123 15 SR 3RD LINE TO CTY RD 124 -$                        250,000.00$           

3RD LINE FROM 20 SR 1.2 KM SOUTH 250,000.00$           
15 SR MAIN ST 1 KM EAST

3122 CHURCH STREET - CURB 24,796.49$                -$                      
TOTAL 350,000.00$           503,304.74$            900,000.00$        

RESERVE
5030 REPLACEMENT EQUIPMENT RESERVE 150,000.00$             150,000.00$              150,000.00$           

ROAD CAPITAL RESERVES 10,000.00$               
TOTAL 160,000.00$           150,000.00$            150,000.00$        

BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS
7041 WORKS BUILDING ROOF REPLACEMENT 119,568.00$             129,690.70$              -$                      

TOTAL 119,568.00$           129,690.70$            -$                      

TOTAL ROAD EXPENDITURES 3,539,630.13$       2,857,359.08$         3,872,702.00$     



11

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5007 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
2171 LEVELLING 7,500.00$                 -$                         7,500.00$              
2105 LANDFILL STUDY/MONITORING 16,000.00$               15,833.86$                16,318.00$             
2190 MISCELLANEIOUS 100.00$                   100.00$                 
7001 REHABILITATION RESERVE 10,000.00$               10,000.00$                10,000.00$             
7010 ENVIRONMENTAL/SUSTAINABILITY 5,000.00$                 167.90$                    -$                      

TOTAL 38,600.00$             25,833.86$              33,918.00$           

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # RECREATION SERVICES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5010 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
5055 CORBETTON PARK 2,500.00$                 2,500.00$                  2,500.00$              
6060 HORNING'S MILLS PARK 2,500.00$                 5,471.90$                  5,500.00$              
6065 HORNING'S MILLS COMMUNITY HALL 12,000.00$               8,915.94$                  12,000.00$             
6064 HORNING'S MILLS HALL BLDNG NEEDS ASSESS -$                        
6066 HORNING'S MILLS HERITAGE PROJECT 500.00$                   313.47$                    500.00$                 
6070 CENTRE DUFFERIN RECREATION COMPLEX 63,550.00$               67,038.00$                54,000.00$             
6080 DUNDALK COMMUNITY CENTRE 14,000.00$               14,521.00$                15,500.00$             
6100 NORTH DUFFERIN COMMUNITY CENTRE 76,758.00$               74,643.37$                62,773.00$             

HORNING'S MILLS HALL BOARD 2,000.00$              
HERITAGE COMMITTEE 5,000.00$                 -$                         3,500.00$              
TOTAL 176,808.00$           173,403.68$            158,273.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # CEMETARY BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5016 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
8902 HORNING'S MILLS CEMETERY 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$              
8904 ST. PAUL'S CEMETERY

TOTAL 5,000.00$               5,000.00$                5,000.00$             

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # LIBRARY BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5011 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
6110 SHELBURNE LIBRARY 58,500.00$               58,711.00$                61,915.00$             
6120 DUNDALK LIBRARY 8,600.00$                 8,732.00$                  9,000.00$              

TOTAL 67,100.00$             67,443.00$              70,915.00$           



12

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # PLANNING SERVICES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5012 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
2100 PROFESSIONAL/LEGAL FEES 50,000.00$               55,802.78$                60,000.00$             
2018 OFFICIAL PLAN 30,000.00$             
2109 NEW ZONING BY-LAW -$                        45,000.00$             
2101 LPAT/OLT APPEALS 15,000.00$               -$                         -$                      
2102 LPAT/OLT APPEALS RESERVES 15,000.00$               15,000.00$                15,000.00$             
2304 STRADA OPA/ZBA -$                        

TOTAL 80,000.00$             70,802.78$              150,000.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # DRAINAGE BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5009 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
3060 DRAINAGE SUPERINTENDENT 50,880.00$               22,177.20$                50,000.00$             
3070 NUISANCE BEAVER & BEAVER DAM REMOVAL 4,500.00$                 4,426.18$                  5,000.00$              

TOTAL 55,380.00$             26,603.38$              55,000.00$           

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # RESERVES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5002 EXPENDITURES AS AT MAR 2, 2023
COVID - SAFE RESTART 28,000.00$               28,000.00$                -$                      

5042 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND EMERGENCY RELIEF 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  -$                      
TOTAL 33,000.00$             33,000.00$              -$                      

TOTAL
EXPENITURER 5,602,691.92$       4,764,519.96$         6,070,427.00$     



13

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # TAXATION BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUE AS AT MAR 2, 2023
4001 0700 SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES 85,000.00$               83,072.57$                85,000.00$             
4003 0100 PAYMENT IN LIEU 1,900.00$                 1,946.42$                  1,950.00$              

TOTAL TAXATION REVENUE 86,900.00$             85,018.99$              86,950.00$           

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # GRANT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4004 REVENUE AS AT MAR 2, 2023
150 OMPF 176,500.00$             176,500.00$              175,300.00$           
300 RIDE GRANT 6,600.00$                 6,524.00$                  6,600.00$              
172 COURT SECURITY & PRISONER TRANSPORT 1,500.00$                 730.00$                    730.00$                 
500 LIBRARY GRANT 4,452.00$                 4,452.00$                  4,452.00$              
156 OCIF FUNDING (FORMULA COMPONENT) 108,537.00$             108,537.00$              100,000.00$           
159 SAFE RESTART AGREEMENT (COVID) -$                        
700 ONTARIO AGGREGATE LIC. FEE 100,000.00$             118,882.38$              115,000.00$           
100 DRAINAGE SUPERINTENDENT 25,440.00$               11,088.60$                25,000.00$             
164 ICIP GRANT (ROADS BLDG ROOF) 92,000.00$               92,000.00$                -$                      

TOTAL COUNCIL REVENUE 515,029.00$           518,713.98$            427,082.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ADMINISTRATION BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4010 REVENUE AS AT MAR 2, 2023
100 TAX CERTIFICATES 3,000.00$                 2,640.00$                  2,500.00$              
110 TAX STATEMENT/DUPLICATE TAX BILLS 500.00$                   535.00$                    500.00$                 
115 REMINDER/OVERDUE NOTICE FEE 3,000.00$                 3,034.00$                  3,000.00$              
200 BUILDING PERMIT APPROVAL 4,800.00$                 6,600.00$                  5,500.00$              
250 SITE ALTERATION PERMIT APPROVAL -$                        -$                      
300 NSF CHEQUE CHARGE 50.00$                     -$                         100.00$                 
400 PHOTOCOPIES -$                        -$                      

4015 0100 DOG LICENCES 12,000.00$               10,825.00$                10,000.00$             
4066 0000 LOTTERY LICENSES 20.00$                     -$                         20.00$                   
4040 0100 LIVESTOCK CLAIM GRANTS 30.00$                     3,935.00$                  4,000.00$              
4064 0000 BUSINESS LICENSES 250.00$                   -$                         250.00$                 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION REVENUE 23,650.00$             27,569.00$              25,870.00$           



14

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # FIRE BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4012 REVENUE AS AT MAR 2, 2023
100 FIRE REVENUE 500.00$                   1,534.00$                  1,500.00$              
300 FIRE PERMIT 3,600.00$                 3,585.00$                  3,500.00$              

TOTAL FIRE REVENUE 4,100.00$               5,119.00$                5,000.00$             

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROAD BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4020 REVENUE AS AT MAR 2, 2023
110 ROADS MISC REVENUE 1,000.00$                 11,620.00$                9,000.00$              
125 ENTRANCE PERMITS 1,200.00$                 5,200.00$                  4,000.00$              
130 WIDE LOAD PERMITS 1,320.00$                 1,200.00$                  2,000.00$              
200 CULVERTS -$                        
140 BRETTON ESTATES SNOW PLOWING 900.00$                   -$                         
500 SHELBURNE ROAD AGREEMENT 5,660.00$                 6,026.00$                  6,442.00$              

TRANSFER FROM RESERVES
703 TRFR FROM GAS TAX 204,500.00$             204,500.00$              135,000.00$           
704 TRFR FROM ROAD CAPITAL RESERVE 200,000.00$           
702 TRFR FROM EQUIPMENT RESERVE - TRUCK 628,350.00$             144,793.00$              595,000.00$           

0 TRFR FROM WORKING CAPITAL RESERVE 250,000.00$             274,797.00$              99,000.00$             
TRFR FROM PAVING RESERVE 74,000.00$             
TRFR DEV CHG (GRADER) 175,000.00$           
TRFR DEV CHG (PAVING) 52,000.00$             
TRFR FROM WORKING RE: Roads Project 150,000.00$           
TAX STABILIZATION 161,504.00$              
TOTAL ROADS REVENUE 1,092,930.00$       809,640.00$            1,501,442.00$     

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # PLANNING BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4035 REVENUE AS AT MAR 2, 2023
100 OFFICIAL PLAN APPLICATION -$                        -$                      
310 SITE PLAN APPLICATION FEES -$                        -$                      
350 ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 10,000.00$               3,500.00$                  6,000.00$              
300 CONSENT APPLICATIONS 7,000.00$                 7,000.00$                  6,000.00$              
325 MINOR VARIANCE 1,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$              
200 ZONING REQUESTS 1,700.00$                 750.00$                    1,000.00$              
360 CHANGE OF USE CERTIFICATE APPLICATION -$                        1,500.00$                  2,500.00$              
370 TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITES APPLICATION -$                        -$                      
375 PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION -$                        7,000.00$                  12,000.00$             
500 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REIMBURSEMENT -$                        -$                      

TRFR FROM DEV CHG (OFFICIAL PLAN) 21,000.00$             
TOTAL PLANNING REVENUE 19,700.00$             24,750.00$              53,500.00$           



15

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # OTHER BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4050 REVENUE AS AT MAR 2, 2023
100 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 500.00$                   927.00$                    600.00$                 
125 CHD COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION 309,000.00$             309,000.00$              309,000.00$           
130 PLATEAU COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION 33,000.00$               34,673.00$                35,000.00$             
135 DWP COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION 265,000.00$             264,000.00$              264,000.00$           
200 PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON TAXES 95,000.00$               105,954.00$              105,000.00$           
300 INTEREST ON DEPOSITS 11,000.00$               36,155.00$                45,000.00$             
400 POA 6,000.00$                 40,788.20$                45,000.00$             

4077 0000 LAND RENTAL 2,550.00$                 2,550.00$                  2,550.00$              
4050 0460 TRFR FROM MMAH-2019 FOR COUNCIL HYBRID 5,500.00$                 5,500.00$                  5,000.00$              
4050 0460 TRFR FROM COVID FUNDING 28,000.00$               28,000.00$                -$                      

TRFR FROM EMERGENCY RELIEF FUND 25,000.00$             
4050 0460 TRFR FROM TAX STABALIZATION (LEGALS OVERAGE) 15,000.00$               161,503.00$              40,000.00$             

TRFR DEV CHG (GRADER) 175,000.00$             -$                         
TOTAL  OTHER REVENUE 945,550.00$           989,050.20$            876,150.00$        

TOTAL REVENUE 2,687,859.00$       2,459,861.17$         2,975,994.00$     

TOTAL EXPENDITURER 5,602,691.92$       4,764,519.96$         6,070,427.00$     

2,914,832.92$       2,304,658.79$         3,094,433.00$     



SCHEDULE A to BY-LAW     -2023

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

2023 TAX RATES & LEVIES

 Tax Township of Township of
Property Class Class Melancthon 2023 Melancthon

Tax Rates CVA Tax Levy

Residential RT 0.511620% $444,373,100.00 $2,273,500.99

Residential Payment In Lieu RH 0.511620% $0.00 $0.00

Commercial  Full (Occupied) CT 0.624176% $10,363,500.00 $64,686.50

Commercial Vacant Land CU 0.619807% $393,200.00 $2,437.08

Commercial Excess Land CX 0.619807% $68,000.00 $421.47

Commercial New Const. Full XT 0.624176% $0.00 $0.00

Commercial New Const. Excess Land XU 0.436923% $0.00 $0.00

Industrial (Occupied) IT 1.124745% $40,674,100.00 $457,479.94

Industrial Excess Land IX 1.116872% $141,000.00 $1,574.79

Industrial New Const. Full IH 1.124745% $117,000.00 $1,315.95

Industrial New Const. Excess Land JU 1.116872% $0.00 $0.00

Large Industrial Excess Land LU 0.787332% $0.00 $0.00

Pipeline PT 0.430835% $1,942,000.00 $8,366.82

Farmlands FT 0.112556% $249,747,300.00 $281,106.49

Managed Forest TT 0.127905% $2,770,000.00 $3,542.97
TOTAL AMOUNTS TO BE RAISED $750,589,200.00 $3,094,433.00

CALCULATIONS OF LOWER TIER TAX RATES
SCHEDULE C



SCHEDULE A to BY-LAW     -2023

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
2023 TAX RATES & LEVIES

 Tax Township of County Provincial 2023 Township of County Total

Property Class Class Melancthon of Dufferin Education Total 2023 Melancthon of Dufferin Education Tax

Tax Rates Tax Rates Tax Rates Tax Rates CVA Tax Levy Tax Levy Tax Levy Levy

Residential RT 0.511620% 0.383894% 0.153000% 1.048514% $444,373,100.00 $2,273,500.99 $1,705,921.67 $679,890.84 $4,659,313.51

Residential Payment In Lieu RH 0.511620% 0.383894% 0.153000% 1.048514% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Commercial  Full (Occupied) CT 0.624176% 0.468351% 0.880000% 1.972527% $10,363,500.00 $64,686.50 $48,537.52 $91,198.80 $204,422.83

Commercial Vacant Land CU 0.619807% 0.327845% 0.880000% 1.827652% $393,200.00 $2,437.08 $1,289.09 $3,460.16 $7,186.33

Commercial Excess Land CX 0.619807% 0.327845% 0.880000% 1.827652% $68,000.00 $421.47 $222.93 $598.40 $1,242.80

Commercial New Const. Full XT 0.624176% 0.468351% 0.880000% 1.972527% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Commercial New Const. Excess Land XU 0.436923% 0.327845% 0.880000% 1.644769% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Industrial (Occupied) IT 1.124745% 0.843953% 0.880000% 2.848698% $40,674,100.00 $457,479.94 $343,270.11 $357,932.08 $1,158,682.13

Industrial Excess Land IX 1.116872% 0.590767% 0.880000% 2.587639% $141,000.00 $1,574.79 $832.98 $1,240.80 $3,648.57

Industrial New Const. Full IH 1.124745% 0.843953% 0.880000% 2.848698% $117,000.00 $1,315.95 $987.42 $1,029.60 $3,332.98

Industrial New Const. Excess Land JU 1.116872% 0.590767% 0.880000% 2.587639% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Large Industrial Excess Land LU 0.787332% 0.590767% 0.880000% 2.258099% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pipeline PT 0.430835% 0.323277% 0.856022% 1.610134% $1,942,000.00 $8,366.82 $6,278.04 $16,623.95 $31,268.81

Farmlands FT 0.112556% 0.084457% 0.038250% 0.235263% $249,747,300.00 $281,106.49 $210,928.28 $95,528.34 $587,563.11

Managed Forest TT 0.127905% 0.095974% 0.038250% 0.262128% $2,770,000.00 $3,542.97 $2,658.47 $1,059.53 $7,260.96

TOTAL AMOUNTS TO BE RAISED $750,589,200.00 $3,094,433.00 $2,320,926.52 $1,248,562.50 $6,663,922.02



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023GB #16.2.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text





kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023DEL #17.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text





  The Corporation of THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  

  157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

  

 

 

1 
 

Date: March 16, 2023 

To: Mayor White and Members of Council 

From: Silva Yousif – Senior Planner 

Subject:  Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd. (DHL) – Statutory Public 
Meeting  

 

Recommendation: 

That the Staff Report of Silva Yousif, Senior Planner be received for information. 

Background: 

The Township issued Notice of Complete Application on February 16/2022 for a 

proposal by Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd. (DHL) to redesignate and rezone the below 

described lands for the purpose of opening a new mineral aggregate (pit above water 

table) operation to the north of the existing DHL pit operation: 

• Approximately 4.45 ha (11 acres) of the East Part of Lot 13, Concession 4 O.S. 
These lands are currently owned by Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd. and abut ARA 
license No, 3726 which has been in place since 1980. These lands appear to 
form part of a setback or buffer from the 4th Line related to the original license. 

• Approximately 40.1 ha (99.2 acres) of the East Part of Lot 14, Concession 4 O.S. 
These lands are currently owned by Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd. and are utilized 
for agricultural purposes and also are characterized by a woodlot and small 
wetland in the south-west corner of the lot. The lands also appear to be occupied 
by an original drive shed. 
 

This proposal is also a subject to an application under the Aggregate Resources Act 

(ARA) to obtain a license for a Class A, Category 3 gravel pit. The lands subject to the 

application are shown outlined in blue in Figure 1. 



  The Corporation of THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  

  157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

  

 

 

2 
 

Figure 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments and Considerations: 

 

The proposed application was presented to Council on September 17, 2020 Council 

meeting; Township Planner and the Applicant Planning Consultant attended Council 

meeting on February 3, 2022, to present the formal application to Council in order to 

obtain the notice of complete application. 

The following supporting documents and studies were received by the Township, deemed 
a complete application and circulated to staff and agencies through a formal first 
submission: 

1. Natural Environment Level 1 & 2 Technical Reports 
2. Hydrogeological Assessment Level 1 & 2 



  The Corporation of THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  

  157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

  

 

 

3 
 

3. Noise Impact Study 
4. Stage 1, 2 and 3 Archaeological Assessment 
5. Agricultural Impact Assessment 
6. Planning Justification Report 
7. Traffic Review 
8. Stormwater Management Brief 
9. ARA Site Plans (Existing Conditions, Operation and Rehabilitation) 

 

The applicant requested to proceed with the Public Meeting to further receive public 

input on the proposal to address the comments within a comprehensive second 

submission that is pending some seasonal technical items as listed below: 

- Continuous groundwater monitoring. 
- NVCA site visit (stake the dripline of the Significant Woodland and verify the 

wetland boundary and watercourse characterization)   
- Stage 4 archaeological (booked for spring). 

 
The Township Staff is anticipating further submissions to address the above items along 
with any further requirements that may be put forward by the review and approval 
agencies.  
 

Financial Impact: 
This is a report for information only therefore there are no financial implications. 

 Summary/ Options: 

 
Council may: 
 

1. Take no further action. 
2. Receive this Report for information and that Council Direct Staff to take 

actions as per the Staff Report of Silva Yousif, Senior Planner 
Recommendation 

3. Direct Staff in another manner Council deems appropriate 
 

Conclusion: 

Option #2 is recommended. 
 



  The Corporation of THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  

  157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

  

 

 

4 
 

 
 
 
 
Respectfully  

Prepared By Submitted By 

Silva Yousif Denise B. Holmes 

Sr. Planner  CAO/Clerk 

      
 
 



PUBL I C  MEET ING
M E L A N C T H O N  P I T  E X P A N S I O N

O P A  &  Z B A  A P P L I C A T I O N  

M A R C H  1 6 ,  2 0 2 3

P R E S E N T A T I O N  B Y :



SLIDE 2

L O C A T I O N

• The subject applications include two (2) 
parcels of land, municipally known as 
437202 4th Line and 437138 4th Line.

• The properties are located along the west 
side of the 4th Line, approximately 1.2 
kilometers north of County Road 17 and 
approximately 600 metres south of Side 
Road 15.

• The subject lands are located within a 
predominantly rural and agricultural area.

• A concentration of aggregate operations 
are located adjacent to the east, including 
operations by Strada Aggregates Inc. and 
St. Mary’s Cement Inc. 

DHL Lands

437202

437138



SLIDE 3

E X I S T I N G  O P E R A T I O N S  

• Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd. (DHL) was established 
in 1975 and the company supplies considerable 
volumes of aggregate materials to the market.

• DHL currently operates an aggregate pit at 437138 
4th Line, licensed as a Class ‘A’ pit (Category 3 –
Above Water Table) under the Aggregate Resources 
Act (License No. 3726).

➢ Class A = 20,000 tonnes + removed annually.

• The current operations have been licensed since the 
early 1990’s and hold an authorized area of 28.35 
hectares (70 acres), with a maximum annual 
tonnage of 199,550. 

• Life expectancy of the existing pit is based on market 
demand, with approximately 500,000 tones of 
material left, or around 3-5 years of full operations.



P R O P O S E D  E X P A N S I O N  

SLIDE 4

• The proposed Aggregate Resources Act (ARA) 
application is for a Class ‘A’ License for a pit above
the water table. 

• The proposed license would permit extraction of 
500,000 tonnes annually (max.), shared between 
the existing and proposed operations.

• The application would permit an additional 45 
hectares (111.1 acres) of land to be licensed, with 
a proposed extraction area of 34.5 hectares (85.2 
acres).

• The Site Plans and extraction limits have been 
established through extensive site visits / 
assessments, discussions, and recommendations 
from the consultants and their technical reports.

• The lands contain high quality aggregate material 
(coarse sand and gravel) suited for a range of 
applications, including Granular A and B 
(underground infrastructure / roads), and winter 
control sand (deicing). 

Expansion LandsLicensed Lands Extraction Area



O P E R A T I O N S  &  R E H A B I L I A T I O N  

SLIDE 5

• The subject applications would permit aggregate 
extraction to expand north onto the 437202 4th Line 
property, and north-east to a portion of land on the 
437138 4th Line property (not licensed). 

• Lands not included in the proposed areas for 
extraction will be used for setbacks, mitigation 
measures, and retained natural areas, including:
• 30 m. setback to the 4th Line, with a natural 

berm proposed (5.0 m.)(yellow hatch).
• 15 m. setback to the north and west property 

lines (interior).
• 30 m. setback to the retained natural area for 

protection and buffer (hatched green overlay). 

• The expansion lands would utilize the existing scale 
house and operations entrance off the 4th Line, with 
internal haul routes. 

• Phased extraction is proposed to regulate extraction 
and provide for progressive rehabilitation, returning 
the lands back to productive agricultural condition.

Expansion LandsLicensed Lands Extraction Area



D U F F E R I N  C O U N T Y  

SLIDE 6

The subject lands are designated by the Dufferin 
County Official Plan as follows:

• Schedule B – Community Structure and Land Use: 
‘Countryside Area’

• Schedule C – Agricultural Area and Rural Lands: 
‘Agricultural Area’

• Schedule D – Mineral Aggregate Resource Areas: 
‘Sand and Gravel Resource Area’

• Schedule E – Natural Heritage Features: 
‘Woodlands’ and ‘Watercourses’

• Schedule E1 – Natural Heritage System: ‘County 
Preliminary Natural Heritage System’

❖ An amendment is not required to the County 
Official Plan, as extraction of aggregate is 
permitted under the land use designation (local 
OPA).Schedule D – Aggregate Resource Area



T OWN S H I P  O F F I C I A L  P L A N

SLIDE 7

The subject lands are designated in the Township of Melancthon 
Official Plan as the following:

• Schedule’s A1 – Land Use & Roads Plan: ‘Agricultural’ and 
‘Environmental Conservation’.

• Schedule A5 – Land Use & Roads Plan: ‘Local Road’ and ‘Existing 
Mineral Aggregate Haul Route’ (4th Line).

• Schedule D – Natural Heritage 1 Wetlands: ‘Locally Significant 
and Unevaluated Wetlands’.

• Schedule E – Natural Heritage 2 Woodlands, Wildlife Habitat and 
ANSI: ‘Significant Woodlands’ and ‘Watercourses’

• Schedule G – Aquifer Vulnerability and Wellhead Protection 
Areas: ‘Medium Vulnerability’ and ‘High Vulnerability’

• Schedule G1 – Significant Groundwater Recharge Areas: 
‘Significant Groundwater Recharge Areas’

• Schedule H – Primary Mineral Aggregate Resource Areas: ‘Sand 
and Gravel Resource Area’

❖ A Township Official Plan Amendment (OPA) is required to 
designate the lands to the ‘Extractive Industrial’ designation, 
on the expansion lands. Schedule H – Aggregate Resource Areas



• The Planning Act establishes key matters of Provincial interest, including the conservation and management of 
natural resources. 

• The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) distinctly states that mineral aggregate operations shall be protected from 
development and activities would preclude or hinder their expansion or continued use, where resources are 
identified. 

• Protecting what is valuable is an important component of the Growth Plan (for the Greater Golden Horseshoe), 
which includes mineral aggregate resources. The Plan recognizes that infrastructure and communities will 
require significant amounts of mineral aggregate resources to support growth and development.

• The Dufferin County Official Plan states that aggregate resources are a vital part of the economic prosperity and 
long-term economic success of the Region. The Plan places importance on ensuring the long-term protection of 
these resources and the appropriate management of the resource. 

• The Township of Melancthon Official Plan supports the utilization and protection of aggregate materials. 
Expansions on lands with identified Primary Materials is encouraged and uses that would hinder the expansion 
of operations is discouraged. 

• Rehabilitation is required for all aggregate applications, including progressive and final rehabilitation to 
accommodate subsequent land uses, and to recognize the interim nature of extraction.

❖ Collectively, expansion of operations and utilization of materials is supported by all levels of planning policy. 

P O L I C Y  O V E R V I EW  

SLIDE 8



Z O N I N G B Y - L AW AM E N DM E N T

SLIDE 9

• The expansion lands subject to the applications are currently zoned as 
‘General Agricultural (A1)’.

➢ Existing licensed lands are zoned ‘Extractive Industrial (M2)’.

• A Zoning By-law Amendment (ZBA) is required to permit extraction on 
the expansion lands. 

❖ The ZBA proposed would rezone the lands to the ‘Extractive Industrial 
Exception (M2-XX)’ and ‘Open Space Conservation (OS2)’ zones.

• A 0.0 m. setback is requested between the lands of the existing pit and 
the expansion lands, to permit the expansion and extraction across the 
property lines (15 m. standard).

• The ‘Open Space Conservation (OS2)’ zone proposed by the ZBA would 
retain the evaluated woodlands, ensuring protection. 



H I S T O R Y  &  C O N S U L T A T I O N

SLIDE 10

• A Pre-consultation application was submitted to the Township of Melancthon in May 2020, which included review 
by the County of Dufferin and the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA). 

• The Township’s planner prepared a Pre-consultation Memo (September 11th, 2020) and submitted it to Council. The 
Memo overviewed the application and included preliminary comments from the Township.

• The Pre-consultation application was presented before Council by the Township’s planner on September 17 th, 2020, 
to introduce the application and provide a preliminary overview. Representation was made by IPS on behalf of the 
applicant DHL, to respond to preliminary comments from Council.

• The application was formally submitted on August 4th, 2021. 

• On February 3rd, 2022, the application was formally brought before Council to deem it complete. 

• IPS has been in consultation with the Township, County of Dufferin, Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry 
(MNRF), and the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) through the review process. 

• As the subject lands fall within the traditional territory of the Saugeen Ojibway Nation (SON), early consultation was 
completed, including a site meeting on July 10th, 2018. The Applicant then worked to obtain a Letter of Agreement 
with SON (signed September 5th, 2019), with respect to a mutual goal to set out a framework for consultation and 
accommodation with SON regarding the proposed pit expansion within their traditional territory. 

• A formal 2nd submission is targeted for Spring 2023, addressing technical review comments from the 1st submission.

➢ Main comments relate to groundwater monitoring, ARA Site Plan refinements, archaeological and NVCA 
clearance. 



K E Y  S T U D I E S

SLIDE 11

• Planning Justification Report - IPS

o ARA Summary Statement – Part of Planning Report – IPS

• Stage 1 and 2 Archaeological Assessment – ASI

o Archaeological Entry Letter Stage 1 and 2 - Ministry of Heritage, Sport, Tourism, Culture Industries.

• Stage 3 Archaeological Assessment – Spring 2023

• Natural Environmental Level 1 Technical Report - Birks Natural Heritage Consultants

• Natural Environmental Level 2 Technical Report - Birks Natural Heritage Consultants

• Agricultural Impact Assessment - Orion Environmental Solutions

• Combined Level 1 and 2 Hydrogeological Assessment - Azimuth Environmental Consulting

• Traffic Review – Tatham Engineering 

• Noise Impact Study – Trinity Consultants 

• Amendment Documents – IPS

• Letter of Agreement - Saugeen Ojibway Nation / Applicant

• Stormwater Management Brief - WMI & Associates Limited

• ARA Site Plans – IPS 



A G G R E G A T E  R E S O U R C E S  

SLIDE 12

• The utilization of aggregate resources is essential, as the materials are limited 
and fixed in place.

• Lands within the Township, including the subject lands, are identified as 
containing high quality aggregate materials.

➢ The subject lands are known by the Province for sand and gravel 
resources, designated as ‘Primary Significance’ (Aggregate Resources Inventory Paper, 

ARIP 163 – Revision 2, 2014, Map 1).

• License fees are collected from the operator and are distributed to the 
Municipality (approx. 61% of total fee).   

• It is imperative to recognize mineral aggregate resources within the 
Township, as aggregate is an economic driver and provides employment 
opportunities in the industry. 

• Aggregate is also viewed as the foundation of the economy and society, as it 
is utilized to build homes, roads, schools, hospitals, water filtration systems, 
and everyday household products.

• The passing of Bill 23 (the More Homes Built Faster Act) aims to build 1.5 
million new homes in the next 10 years, which will drive the demand for 
aggregate in Ontario.  

ARIP PAPER 163 – Map 1



C O N C L U S I O N

SLIDE 13

• The Applicant (DHL) is seeking an aggregate pit expansion to their Melancthon Pit (License No. 3726), 
under a  Class ‘A’ license for a pit above the water table. The expansion would permit 45 hectares (+/ -) of 
lands to be licensed, with an extraction area of 34.5 hectares (+/-). 

• Amendment to the Township of Melancthon Official Plan is required to redesignate the subject lands 
from ‘Agricultural’ and ‘Environmental Conservation’, to ‘Extractive Industrial’.

• Amendment to the Township of Melancthon Zoning By-law is requested to rezone the subject lands from 
the ‘General Agricultural (A1)’ zone to the ‘Extractive Industrial Exception (M2-XX)’ and ‘Open Space 
Conservation (OS2)’ zones.

• Recognizing the interim use, once the resources are exhausted the lands would be returned to a 
productive agricultural condition.   

• The subject lands are identified by the Province, County, and Township as containing high quality 
aggregate materials, where all levels of policy protects aggregate resources and encourages the 
extraction of materials in close proximity to market.

• The operator/applicant has a longstanding business and desires to maintain operations within the 
Township of Melancthon. 



Q U E S T I O N S & F E E D B A C K

SLIDE 14

THANK YOU
Questions and Comments Welcome

Email: info@ipsconsultinginc.com

mailto:info@ipsconsultinginc.com


SLIDE 15

APPENDICES



O P A  A M E N DM E N T

SLIDE 16



Z B A  A M E N DM E N T

SLIDE 17

Expansion Lands: General Agricultural (A1)

Existing Operation: Extractive Industrial (M2)



E X I S T I N G  F E A T U R E S

SLIDE 18



O P E R A T I O N S  &  R E H A B I L A I T I O N  

SLIDE 19



kchessell
Typewritten Text
MAR 16 2023DEL #17.2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



 
Tuesday March 7, 2023  

 
 
To:  Ms. Denise Holmes 
 CAO/Clerk, Melancthon Township 

Re:  NDACT and Strada Aggregates Inc. (Strada) Delegation, Thursday March 16th, 2023 

 

The purpose of our Delegation is threefold: 

We would like to bring Melancthon Council up to date on the Community Agreement that is being 
developed between NDACT and Strada.  

As part of the Community Agreement, we would like to ask for Council’s support in the hiring process of 
the Community Peer Reviewers. With some background: 

• The peer review categories cover Hydrogeology, Air, Noise and Blasting.   
• Mr. Garry Hunter has already been selected as the Hydrogeology Community Peer Reviewer.  
• All Community Peer Reviewers will be funded by Strada. 

And finally, as part of the Community Agreement, the parties are developing a Community Recreation 
Fund whose value will be based on tonnage and time. We want to update Council on this Fund and ask 
Council for its administrative support of the Fund once negotiations are final.    

Thank you in advance for including this in the meeting package, 

  

Respectfully, 

Carl Cosack 
Board Member 
NDACT 
 


	March 16, 2023 Agenda
	March 2, 2023 Minutes
	Plan #11.1 ~ Applications to Permit
	BD COMM #1 ~ Roads Sub-Committee – February 1, 2023
	BD COMM #2 ~ Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority Board – February 2023
	BD COMM #3 ~ Upper Grand Watershed Committee - August 25th, 2022
	BD COMM #4 ~ Upper Grand Watershed Committee – February 23, 2023
	BD COMM #5 ~ Grand River Conservation Authority – February 24, 2023
	Action Items
	Information Items
	Correspondence
	Source Protection Authority
	Committee Appointments

	INFO #1 ~ Request for Comments on Niagara Escarpment Plan Amendment
	PC 225 Request for Comments
	PC 225 Initial Staff Report
	Initial Staff Report
	RE: Proposed Niagara Escarpment Plan Amendment PC 225 22
	Proposal summary:
	Purpose:
	Staff summary recommendation:
	B. Existing planning framework
	1. Niagara Escarpment Planning and Development Act (NEPDA)

	2. Niagara Escarpment Plan
	Ontario Regulation 828/90 - Development Permit Regulation
	3. Provincial Policy Statement (2020)
	4. Greenbelt Plan (2017)
	5. Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe
	6. Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation Plan (ORMCP)
	7. Regional and local planning context
	8. Provincial Guidelines
	Guidelines of Permitted Uses in Ontario’s Prime Agricultural Areas, 2016, Ontario Ministry of Agriculture Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA), Publication 851.
	C. Chronology of agriculture-related staff reports, Development Permit Applications, and Plan amendments
	D. Analysis / Amendment considerations
	Does the proposed Amendment satisfy and reflect the purpose and objectives of the NEPDA?

	Known Stakeholder Positions
	E. Initiating the Amendment
	Justification for the Amendment
	Niagara Escarpment Plan
	1. Is the Amendment consistent with the Objectives of the Designation and the Designation Criteria in the NEP?
	2.  Is the Amendment consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS), Greenbelt Plan, Places to Grow, and local planning documents?

	Attachments
	Prepared By: Approved by:
	Recommendation:
	Prepared by:
	Approved by:


	November 16, 2022
	Part A – The Preamble Part B – The Amendment
	Area:
	Initiator:
	Basis:
	Part B – The Amendment
	Part 1 Land Use Policies Permitted Use Part 1.4.3 Escarpment Protection Area, Permitted Use 3 is amended as follows:
	Part 2.7 Development Affecting Natural Heritage is amended by adding a new subsection 2.7.2 which shall read:
	Part 2.7 Development Affecting Natural Heritage is amended by adding a new sub-section as follows:
	The following definition is added to Appendix 2 Definitions:



	INFO #2 ~ Township of Amaranth Motion to Support a County Wide Telecommunications System
	INFO #3 ~ Municipality of Trent Lakes Motion to Request the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing to Make Changes to the Municipal Oath of Office
	INFO #4 ~ Township of East Garafraxa Motion Regarding Lake Erie Source Protection Committee Membership Nomination for 2022-2026 Term
	INFO #5 ~ Township of East Garafraxa Motion to Support a County Wide Telecommunications System
	INFO #6 ~ Township of Southgate Notice of Virtual Public Information Centre No. 2 Wastewater Treatment Capacity
	INFO #7 ~ Letter from Harvey Lyon to Ilona Feldmann, Source Protection Program Assistant regarding Source Water Protection report dated December 20, 2022
	ACT #1 ~ Shelburne Public Library 2023 Budget
	ACT #2 ~ Letters from Lenora Banfield, Chair of the Upper Grand Watershed Committee
	ACT #3 ~ North Dufferin Community Centre Board of Management 2023 Budget
	ACT #4 ~ Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Department 2023 Budget
	ACT #5 ~ Shelburne & District Fire Department 2023 Operating Budget
	GB #16.1.1 ~ By-Law to Prescribe a Tariff of Fees for Planning Matters
	GB #16.1.2 ~ By-Law to Adopt the Estimates of all Sums Required During the Year and to Strike the Rates of Taxation and to Further Provide for Penalty and Interest in Default of Payment Thereof for the Year 2023
	2023 tax rate By-law
	Schedule A - Calculations
	2023 Approved Budget
	SCHEDULE C - LOWER TIER RATES
	Total Tax Rates

	GB #16.2.1 ~ Roseann Knechtel, Deputy Clerk Township of Mulmur Report Regarding Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Hall Emergency Shelter
	DEL #17.1 ~ 520 p.m. – Public Meeting to Inform the Public of a Proposed Official Plan and Zoning By-law Amendment – Duivenvoorden Haulage Ltd.
	DHL Melancthon_Public Meeting PPT_March16,2023_IPS.pdf
	Slide 1: PUBLIC MEETING
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4: PROPOSED EXPANSION 
	Slide 5: OPERATIONS & REHABILIATION 
	Slide 6: DUFFERIN COUNTY 
	Slide 7: TOWNSHIP OFFICIAL PLAN
	Slide 8: POLICY OVERVIEW 
	Slide 9: ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT
	Slide 10: HISTORY & CONSULTATION
	Slide 11: KEY STUDIES
	Slide 12: AGGREGATE RESOURCES 
	Slide 13: CONCLUSION
	Slide 14: QUESTIONS & FEEDBACK
	Slide 15
	Slide 16: OPA AMENDMENT
	Slide 17: ZBA AMENDMENT
	Slide 18: EXISTING FEATURES
	Slide 19: OPERATIONS & REHABILAITION 


	DEL #17.2 ~ 540 p.m. – Carl Cosack, NDACT – To update Council on the NDACTStrada Engagement



